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The core of the corporate brand is “Chinese herbal medicine”. The core of the corporate culture is
“culture of Chinese herbal medicine”.

Since the creation of the Bawang brand, with its inherited Chinese herbal medicine, the Group has
been using its unique knowledge and experience to spread the culture of Chinese herbal medicine and
strengthen its brand to extend the influence of Chinese national brand.

The Group has been focusing on the research, development, manufacture and sales of high quality
natural Chinese herbal products with good value. The Group strives to capture the essence of the
Chinese herbal medicine with a 5,000-year history and introduce to consumers a natural and healthy
lifestyle. The Group is aiming to promote its national brand to the global market.
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Financial Highlights

B 75 4 2

2009 2008
—EEZhEF —ZEENF % Change
RMB’000 RMB’000 285%
AR®T ARBF T
Revenue - 1,756,001 1,411,248 24.4%
Profit from operations i 452,252 341,925 32.3%
Profit for the year attributable RABIE=FEE ARMN
to the equity shareholders F N5 F)
of the Company 364,144 281,774 29.2%
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BRAEMARET)
Basic AR 0.15 0.13 15.4%
Diluted B 0.15 0.13 15.4%
Dividends per share BREE
— Final dividend (HK cents) — REIRE B 4.25 N/A N/A
— Special dividend (HK cents) — BRI E B 4.25 N/A N/A
Dividend payout ratio K B b & 60% N/A N/A
Revenue by Product Category
A B E SR DR
95% 94.5%

( (RMB’000) For the year ended 31 December )
(AR¥FT) BEI1I2A3AILEE
. Shampoo & hair-care products 1,669,025 1,334,142 +251%
KEEEEM
Skincare products 8,049 7,871 +23%
EEEM
& Other HPC products 78,927 69,235 +14.0%
HtESR )
2 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F B (£ &) =R AR A 7
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4.5% 4.9%
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Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
WAN Yuhua

SHEN Xiaodi
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Corporate Information

LR R#H

Authorized representatives

WAN Yuhua
WONG Sin Yung crA

Registered office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

Principal place of business in the PRC

8 Huanan Beilu
Baiyun District
Guangzhou
510440

PRC

Place of business in Hong Kong

Suite B, 12/F
Ritz Plaza

122 Austin Road
Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share
registrar and transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

LR RH

Hong Kong Branch share registrar and

transfer office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Auditors

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

Legal advisor on Hong Kong law

Herbert Smith

23rd Floor, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance advisor

Kingsway Capital Limited
5th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Central

Hong Kong

Company’s website

www.bawang.com.cn
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Corporate Information

LFEEH
Stock code IREARL
01338 01338
Principal bankers FEERIEIT
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking EAELLBEZCRITERA A
Corporation Limited BB
1 Queen’s Road Central ERFRNEBFIHR
Hong Kong
Bank of China Limited REIRITIRGD B R A A
1073 Jichang Road ]
Guangzhou 510180 BN
PRC 1 15 #1073 5%
#4m : 510180
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd HRETRNBR AT
China Merchants Bank Tower No. 7088 A
Shennan Boulevard YT
Shenzhen 518040 PRC A A ET7088 B IR1T K E
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report the audited
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009.

The successful listing of our shares on 3 July 2009 on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of (the “Stock
Exchange”) was an important milestone in the development of
the Group. We are grateful for the fact that our shares were
446 times over-subscribed by the Hong Kong retail investors
and also significantly over-subscribed by quality international
institutional investors during the midst of the unprecedented
global economic crisis. The overwhelming response and
interest from our investors made our initial public offering one
of the most popular listings in Hong Kong at that time which
further enhanced consumers’ recognition of our Bawang (%

FEUBWAERR :

AANERREFE  MAREZEERZE
BAEEBE _TTAFT _A=1—
BLEFENKEEZFERE -

20097 A3H  ARBIMKRELER BB
RS (TBRPT DR ETHEARE
BRI —EAEE2BREME - EER
7= BLEY 2 72 B PT R A ) 2 BRAG R (K 2K
MIBERT  RANBRERBEAMFLKRE
EHERB46E  REENBERKRER
BEAKRERE ERBRREKREENHR
ARERREEE  ERMA-BKAE
REEMSERAMEERIBLNHA
Alz— - BItAK  BE—FRESTH
EEUHIRMERNRAE - RIFHE
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Chairman’s Statement

FEBREE

) branded products. We believe that the listing of our shares
on the main board of the Stock Exchange will bring significant
advantages to the future development of the Group.

Benefited from improved market condition and consumer
sentiment in China in the second half of 2009, The Group
was able to capture market opportunities and achieved
encouraging results in 2009. During the year under review,
the Group’s turnover increased to RMB1,756.0 million,
representing an increase of 24.4% as compared to
RMB1,411.2 million in 2008. Gross profit margin increased
from 63.9% in 2008 to 66.4% in 2009. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders increased to RMB364.1 million in 2009,
representing an increase of 29.2% in RMB281.8 million in
2008. Net profit margin increased from 20.0% in 2008 to
20.7% in 2009. The Board recommended the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 of HK4.25
cents per share and an additional special dividend of HK4.25
cents per share, making a total dividend of HK8.50 cents per
share and representing a total dividend payout ratio of 60%.
We believe that we should share our achievements with the
Shareholders in light of the promising development prospects
of the Group.

Looking forward, we will make use of our core competences
and specialty in traditional Chinese herbs to develop advanced
and competitive Chinese herbal HPC products and beverages.
We also aim to inherit the essence of traditional Chinese
herbal medicine so as to further enhance the competitiveness
of Chinese herbal HPC products in the global market to
accelerate the industrialization and internationalization of
Chinese herbal products. We will continue to increase and
product lines and to implement multi-product and multi-brand
strategy, aiming to become a global leader of branded Chinese
herbal HPC products operator and to bring the best returns to
our investors.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to the Shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks,
professional parties and employees of the Company for their
continuous commitment and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 April 2010

= BAMERREBRRI SR EHH
RAFBERRNERTRBENES -
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BE L EF24.4% o £ F| =& 20084
63.9%Ft £ 2009 &F #966.4% ° /% 5| & R
2008 F H)20.0%F & 2009 F #)20.7% °
ARREECEEM _TETNF+ A
ST+ —HIEFERZERPRETRRK
742581 &% Bk B & kAR (9 4.257%
& LT MS.508 1l - IRBE XA
60% - HMEBE  EAEBERITMNER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

7 AT

EEE B

Business Review

The year of 2009 was a fruitful year for the Group in terms of
brand building with the successful implementation of our multi-
brand and multi-product strategy.

In May 2009, we successfully launched in China the Royal
Wind Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo series (:&@E % 75)
which is the first anti-dandruff shampoo with Chinese herbal
ingredients. The Royal Wind series (:&/& &%) consists of three
major categories of products including shampoo, hair-care and
shower gel products. The Royal Wind series (& &%) was
subsequently launched in Hong Kong in October 2009.

In December 2009, we launched the Herborn Chinese herbal
skincare products series (ANE & Z71)). This series of products
aims to target at white-collar females aged between 25 and 45
who possess with high purchasing power and pursue a healthy
and natural lifestyle. The Company is making good progress in
building up the sales channels for the Herborn series (AN & & %
7)) in department stores and international supermarkets.

114 1 #b £

% 15 B B

EMEERAIE  2000F2 A AEEEHR
AN —F - AEBEHRZREZESR
HBIREETBIERIER -

200945 H + A& B 1E A B T 5 Ak 1D i
PTHREEABREKRRY[EBR] - H
ABEANE—FERAPELER D ERER
BREREEK BRRINBELE -
EEMAA=—BTERBEER - 2009F
108 AEEBEMESBHELTERR
3l o

2009F 127 - AEBEHBERNFEHEEE
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REHERBEEREBEN SHEREEA
ASERR C FHENR25E45MAEEL
Mo ARBEERBAEERIERE
ARMBEBRBAMSNEEREERIE
F o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

To effectively promote these two new series, an internationally
renowned singer Ms Faye WONG (E£3E) has been invited as
the brand ambassador for both Royal Wind product series (:&
[#) and Herborn series (ANE ).

Towards the end of 2009, we further launched Bawang Men’s
Series (LB L ZEZ%) products, a new series under our
Bawang (% T) brand. The Bawang Men’s Series (L BT &
Fl) is the first high-end professional Chinese herbal shampoo
and hair-care series in the China market specially designed for
men who face different hair-care problems. This series consists
of three major categories of products including shampoo, hair-
care and shower gel products. To effectively promote the
new series as one for “Mature, Successful and True Man”,
the Group has continued to retain internationally renowned
celebrity Mr. Jackie CHAN (3% 8E) to be the brand ambassador
of the Bawang Men’s Series (%8 £ £+ £7%l)).

We are pleased to report that the operating results of these
three new series were generally in line with the expectations of
the management.

In terms of the recognition gained by us in 2009, we were
accredited as “China New Hi-Tech Enterprise” by Guangdong
Science and Technology Department. With this accreditation,
Bawang Guangzhou Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group will be able to enjoy a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% (10 percentage points lower
than the unified tax rate) in the fiscal year of 2011 following the
completion of the prevailing tax holiday. The Directors believe
that the preferential tax rate will further enhance our operational
competitiveness.

AT AN ERE B MERRS - BEER
EERFIEFRTWABIERERRT
MAEZRIMERAFTA -

FE2009F K - AEEE—FHETETS
WHTHIRMET —RE2MEOTEE
EXNBEIFLERN] -BFBILEL R
EERBEATSE - REFIHEBER
EHENRREXTRENEEER
HERRIIRERNE #E KA=1
TEMBER RTBREEHRERR
5l ERMBEB LRI K~ &
BAINER  AEBEEEFEREER
KREEEEETF IS LRINERKE
A o

BMPRSHEARAREE - LA =EHF
JIMBEREDTNAERENEBEY -

2009FF B ERER EHMEN A
(2B SRt  HAESZER -
BIT(EMNABERQF  A£EENZ2EH
BFod BERBHKEERHRTER
R0 FMRFEERBZTAEEERE
B15%M B EMMEH (b —& B EE101E
BN EEMRAZEMKERGE
— S RARNEEHNHREFE I -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEERBAMRSH

We have obtained “National Outstanding Contribution Award
for External Therapy of Traditional Chinese Medicine” in
International Conference & Exposition on Traditional Medicine
2009. We have also obtained China New Hi-Tech products
certificate  from Guangdong Science and Technology
Department for the breakthrough in the development
of a method to extract stilbene glycosides (ZH&ZGH)
from polygonum (A& 5). All the achievements served as
high recognition of our continuous efforts in focusing the
Group’s strong capability in the research, development and
industrialization of Chinese herbal medicine.

We are in the process of applying for the registration of a
number of patents relating to research on the application of
Chinese herbs hair blackening. The successful registration
of which will be a further testament to our research and
development capabilities.

We have been selected as a constituent of Hang Seng
Composite Index (HSCI) effective from 8 March 2010. Among
the constituents of HSCI, the Group is in the Consumer
Goods and the Mid-Cap categories. We are honored to have
been selected as one of the HSCI's constituent stocks. The
Directors believe that the selection will not only further enhance
Group’s reputation and corporate image in the international
capital markets, but will also help investors better assess the
huge future development potential of the Group in the sector.

HFIE2000FERBEBABRMRAE
EHESRE2BAPBEINaRD TR
2] BMEESHEREMERMER
THMEMEMEREE  RERMER
BRES A2 E MBS R
R -FTARLEHRMERRE  B%E
TREERTEEEXCENNRA -

BMEERFEMZ ERPERESEN
FTABEAER - BRI HE L B H
—FEABRMETTMAE LNERR
ﬁ& o

TR 2010F3 ASH WA AB AR A 15
H o ERELEBHIKNMNEK BEEXTEE
BREEMBUEERPAR - KMRE
EMWERBERBEOKNKRZ — - &F
EMEEE T EBE - MAasEEMNE
ENMEBRKREATSNEERLR - mA
EREDKREER M ASEENR
RERWEREN -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

Financial Review

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB1,756.0 million, representing an increase of 24.4%
as compared with RMB1,411.2 million in 2008. The sales
growth in 2009 mainly attributed to the increase in the sales of
Bawang branded products and the launch of Royal Wind (&)
hair-care series in May 2009.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang (), generated
RMB1,411.1 million in revenue, which accounted for 80.4%
of the Group’s total revenue for 2009, and represented an
increase of 4.6% as compared to 2008.

MIATRASRKTAHE

8 75 [@ R

REEFE  AEEKAARY1,756.0
BELT BR_ZEZNFRBARE
1,411.28 & 018 1124.4% ° 20004F & ¥
BABEENRESZSENBLIREMND
2009F5 AL M EREEZRY & X
BEHIE K o

AEBZORE BLREOKRAN
20094 A& [H 48 & X T MB80.4%  E A
R#1,411. 18 & 7T tb20084F [7) Hi1E i1
T4.6% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEARE W

The new branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series,
Royal Wind (:8/&), recorded a revenue of RMB292.6 million
since it was launched in May 2009, which accounted for
approximately 16.7% of the Group’s total revenue for 2009.

Litao (B8&) and Smerry (53 A) generated a total revenue of
RMB52.0 million, which accounted for approximately 2.9% of
the Group’s total revenue for 2009.

We sell our products through extensive distribution and
retail networks. During the year under review, sales to our
distributors and retailers represented approximately 85.7% and
14.3% of total revenue for 2009 respectively.

We launched our products in Hong Kong, Macao, and
Singapore in 2008. We further launched our products in
Malaysia, Myanmar and Thailand in 2009. The sales to the
markets outside the PRC accounted for 4.5% of our total
revenue for 2009.

J

l Frerrerr iﬁ;\. l:.' 5

)

el

-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEBAWMR W

During the year under review, the Group’s cost of sales for
2009 amounted to RMB590.4 million, representing an increase
of 15.9% as compared to RMB509.3 million for 2008. Such
increase was primarily due to the increase in production driven
by the launch of the three new products, namely Royal Wind
(GBME) in May 2009, Herborn (AE %) and Bawang Men’s
Series (FE 5 %%l)) in December 2009.

During the year under review, the Group’s profit increased
RMB1,165.6 million, representing an increase of 29.2% as
compared to RMB901.9 million for 2008. The gross profit
margin increased from 63.9% for 2008 to 66.4% for 2009.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the change in
products mix and the decrease in the percentage of cost of
raw materials against revenue.

REHBETPTAPEER

REEFE_STNFNHEERNNEL
ARKB5904B8 8T  R-ZZEZNFREE
M ARBES09.3B &L+ LR 715.9% ©
HWERANERFEZRRANERDE
HA 9 3T HE /Y = 78 = G (20094F 5 A #
FEEZALEMREEBR - 2009F 12 A #
FPEHEEZEREAEEMNEMHHE L
MBENBEBEB TR Mol EEES AL
hn e

REBEFE-_ZZTAFARTEFNETA
R¥1,1656B 8L BT N\FHH
ARMBEQO1.9B B TGN 729.2% + M E
FEPE T NFHE39%EAE -
TNFW66.4% c EFEHLEHATER
B REm#AE B F 0 A KRR M B A MG
We A B B B PR o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THRESF®RE S W

Selling and distribution costs increased to RMB637.3 million for
2009, representing an increase of 24.4% as compared to that
for 2008 because of the increased cost for the launch of our
new brand product serie Royal Wind (/&) series in May 2009,
Herborn (ANE &) and Bawang Men’s Series (88 £ 51 %) in
December 2009.

Administrative expenses for 2009 amounted to approximately
RMB75.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
59.9% as compared with approximately RMB47.4 million in
the same period in 2008. Such increase was mainly due to the
non-capitalizable listing expenses, administrative staff salaries
and other benefits including share-based payments.

Profit from operations increased to RMB452.3 million for 2009,
representing an increase of 32.3% from RMB341.9 million in
2008. The Group’s operating margin increased from 24.2% for
2008 to 25.8% for 2009. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in sales and decrease in the percentage of costs of
sales against revenue, which was partly offset by the increases
in operating expenses as mentioned previously.

< &g
f &
sk zu gl

TETNFEHERDERTIEMNEA
R¥637.38 & 7T © 820084 [7] #J1& hn 4y
24.4% - KR E E B E200945 A 5
HHHEBERRIMEI2AHELHOAE
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ZEENFE AEENTHREARAY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREBAMR W

Income tax expenses increased to RMB85.7 million for 2009,
representing an increase of 35.4% from RMB63.3 million in
2008. The effective income tax rate increased from 18.3%
before tax for 2008 to 19.1% for 2009. This was mainly
because more losses incurred in the Company in 2009 due
to recognition of the non-capitalisable listing expenses. The
Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands and thus is not
subject to any income tax.

Profit attributable to equity shareholder increased to RMB364.1
million for 2009, representing an increase of 29.2% from
RMB281.8 million in 2008. Net profit margin increased from
20.0% for 2008 to 20.7% for 2009 as the combined effect of
the above analysis.

TETNFAREEFREHERRARYK
85.7H BT B2008F M A R¥63.3H
B INE35.4% c ERFIEHEH =
TENFMI8I% LA ZZTTNFH
101%  HEFENEFTEZERARZARAE
At EmERTHESEEERER -
£ A F12009F W BT BB FTig a0 o AR
ARRUNFASHESNAR - HHEHM
Frig i o

“EENFARRBRREEML G A A
R¥3641HE L ' B2008F M AR K
281.8F B LR 429.2% - A A il [[E
EMERETE  ARRMFNBERK =
ZENFH20.0%FFAE —ZEZNFH
20.7% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEARE W

Outlook

With the gradual stabilization of the global capital and credit
markets in early 2009, the second half of 2009 showed a
continuation of recovery in business operating environment.
We have continued to see business and financial conditions
improving, China’s economy started to picking up recovery
pace, and the fast moving consumer goods sector has shows
strong signs of retail consumption after months of volatile
market conditions. Nonetheless, the management remain to
be cautious for the potential uncertainties that may arise from
the potential implementation of any “exit strategies” by various
governments of the world.

[t is expected that with the continuous development and
growth of China’s economy, the retail sector will benefit from
tremendous market opportunities. The continuous growth of
household income has improved the living standards in China,
which has at the same time increased the public awareness
of personal hygiene. The Directors expect that the needs for
quality personal hygiene products would at the same time
increase. To capture this exciting opportunity, the Company
will continue to offer new brands and new products to
maximize such enormous opportunities available in the Chinese
markets.

Leveraging on our strong fundamentals, innovation and
research and development capabilities, the Directors believe
that the Group will be able to sustain its competitiveness in
the Chinese HPC products market in China. As part of our
development strategy to satisfy the needs of high-end quality
HPC products, the Group will continue to develop and offer
new brands/products along this line. In 2010, the Group will
concentrate on the key initiatives to strengthen its market
share, which are set out below.
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For the Bawang (%) branded products, we target to
strengthen its leadership in the Chinese herbal shampoo
market in China, to further increase the revenue through
extensive coverage of our sales and distribution network
into new areas, to deepen the penetration of the existing
established regional markets, particularly those regions other
than Southern China, to uncreare the sales to the same retailer
and distributor, and to expand the revenue stream through
the launch of new branded products and/or their enhanced
product sub-series.
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For the Royal Wind Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo
series (3B/@ &%), the Directors are pleased that we were able
to achieve the sales target which had been pre-determined
for the first year of launch of the series. We will continue to
expand the sales and distribution network for this series of
and we target to increase the market share of this seriesin the
Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo market and to build up
this brand as another leading Chinese herbal shampoo within
the next few years.

For the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products series (2%
B ® Z7), this new series was launched at the end of 2009.
We will continue to establish the sales networks of this series
through different sales channels and to enhance the brand
image through various brand building programmes. We
strive to establish Herborn as a leading brand in the Chinese
herbal skincare market so that it becomes one of our major
contributor to revenue in near future.
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Bawang
Herbal Tea
1928

_"’;;'E

For new products, we plan to launch a new branded herbal
drink product series known as “Bawang Herbal Drink” in late
April 2010. Mr Ronnie YAN (Bt F}) has been appointed as the
brand ambassador of this branded products. We may further
launch a new branded Chinese herbal household cleaning
product series later this year. Upon successful launching of
these two new products series to the market, we would have
more comprehensive product portfolio comprising three major
categories namely personal care, beverage, and household
care products. The Directors believe that such multi-brand and
multi-product strategy will enable our Group to offer a variety of
choices to satisfy the needs of different market segments and
consumers. Upon the successful building of these new brands
and products, we would be able to diversify our revenue
generators in future.

As disclosed in the prospectus dated 22 June 2009 in
relation to the global offering of the Company’s shares (“the
Prospectus”), the Group plans to lease a new production
premises located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou with an
estimated gross floor area of 75,000 square meters. The first
phase of the new premises will be available for installation
and fittings work the later this year. Once the new facilities
of phase | are in operations, we estimate that our annual
production capacity for shampoo products, hair-care products,
and skincare products will increase by 100,000 metric tons to
approximately 200,000 metric tons.
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The Group has recently leased a piece of land of approximately
500 Chinese acres for Chinese herbal plantation in Guangdong
province. The site preparation work is in progress. When the
demonstrative plantation of Chinese herbs is in operations in
2011, we will adopt the concept of “Good Agriculture Practices
(GAP)” for training and development of sub-contracting
farmers which effectively expands the planting area and yield
of Chinese herbs. The Group may use Chinese herbs from its
own plantations for our production as early as 2011.

Market diversification is another key strategy that the Group
pursues. For overseas market development, the Group
will enter Brunei and the Middle East market in 2010 and
continue to explore potential markets in overseas countries.
For domestic market development, the Group has recently
expanded geographical coverage into two provinces in the
western region namely, Qinghai and Ningxia, making the
distribution network of the Group almost covering every
province and/or municipality in China.

We will continue to explore business opportunities that may
involve potential acquisition of HPC related business either to
supplement our existing business and/or fit into our long term
business development strategies.
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Applications of Net IPO Proceeds

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately RMB1,615
million, after deduction of related expenses. We have utilized
such net proceeds in the manner consistent with that disclosed
in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 June 2009 under
the section headed “Futures Plans and Use of Proceeds”.
Scorchingly, the net proceeds utilized up to 31 December
2009 was as follows:

z

B R
ﬁﬁb

FTRINBREBRSERNMBRIBFE
WER1B15EEARKE - AQRIBRE =
ETNFNAZT_HHBRERIEAK
HEIRFERERE ] —HAEENAR
ERAEEREFE AN - BLEZZTT
NFE+-_A=+—BEREFEAR
EEMT -

{:)tr}

DB PSR IEF

Net IPO proceeds
HBRARNBEFR/RIFREAE

Available Utilised Unutilised
A[EEA 285H FEH
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARBTT) (ARBTT) (AR®BTT)
Marketing and promotion B R E 484,583 290,117 194,466
Design, Research and development — R&T * Iff 38 M 3
FE 323,055 3,845 319,210
Expansion of distribution China and & & N8 B A &
overseas network IND SEAB A 290,750 879 289,871
Capital expenditure BEARRX 193,833 5,929 187,904
Future strategic acquisition R BE MU 161,528 — 161,528
Working capital and EEEe REM
other general corporate purpose —REERE 161,528 98,139 63,389
Total a&t 1,615,277 398,909 1,216,368

Liquidity, financial resources and capital
structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies
and maintains a good and solid financial position. With the
successful listing of our shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in July 2009 (“IPO”) and the
raising of gross proceeds of HKD1,915.9 million, the Group
continues to fund its business operations and general working
capital principally by internally generated resources and the net
proceeds from the IPO.
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As at 31 December 2009, the balance of cash and cash
equivalent was approximately RMB1,742.5 million as
compared with approximately RMB298.1 million as at 31
December 2008. As at 31 December 2009, the total bank and
other borrowings of the Group were approximately RMB158.5
million (2008: nil), which were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The Group had also access to a standby short-term
pbanking facility of RMB100.0 million. No drawdown of this
facility was made as of 31 December 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, the total assets of the Group were
RMB2,544.3 million (2008: RMB650.9 million), which included
current assets amounted to RMB2,498.9 million (2008:
RMB619.4 million). Total liabilities were RMB510.1 million
(2008: RMB336.4 million) with bank borrowings amounting
to RMB158.5 million (2008: nil). Total equity amounted to
RMB2,034.2 million (2008: RMB314.5 million).

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing borrowings
divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2009
was approximately 6.2% (2008: nil).

Material acquisition and disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or
disposal of its subsidiaries or associated companies for 2009.
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and related hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC,
with most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. The Group has exported its
goods to Hong Kong and certain Southeast Asian countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or
United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are
predominantly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi
and United States Dollars. The Company will pay dividends in
Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the
Group paid certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or
Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors are of the view that RMB
is relatively stable against the other currencies and the Group
will closely monitor the fluctuations in exchange rates, and that
hedging by means of derivative instruments is therefore not
necessary.

Pledge of assets of the group

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had entered into a
guarantee contract with a bank for a bank loan of HKD180.0
million, which became effective on 3 July 2009. Pursuant to
the guarantee contract, the Group provided time deposits
amounted to HKD184.0 million to the bank as a pledge to this
bank loan on 22 July 2009.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009.

Capital commitment

The Group had capital commitment amounting to RMB3.5
million as at 31 December 2009.
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Significant investments held

There were no significant investments held by the Company as
at 31 December 2009.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of
approximately 3,300 employees (including staff members and
contract personnel) in the PRC and Hong Kong. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported staff costs of
approximately RMB95.1 million.

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on job responsibilities, work performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong joined social
insurance contribution plans and mandatory provident fund
scheme respectively. Other benefits include performance-
based incentive bonus scheme and share options granted or to
be granted under the share option schemes.

To enable our employees to reach their full potential, we are
committed to staff training and development. In 2009, the
Group organized 16 in-house training classes with more than
2,250 participants in aggregate.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources
policies play a crucial part in further development of the
Group. Promising career prospects, good staff remuneration
and benefits as well as a pleasant working environment are
essential factors for maintenance of a stable workforce for the
Group.
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Directors

The Board comprises eight Directors, including four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain
information in respect of our Directors:

rectors and Senior Management

55

SEEN/\LEFAN  BENENT
FF - RFNTEER=RB TN
TEE TERIMAEENETE
B

Name Age Position/Title

e Fie B 6 8

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 48 Chairman and Executive Director

PR BUIR ITRRATES

Ms. WAN Yuhua 44 Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Executive Director
BEE BREATERNTES

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi 44 Vice-CEO and Executive Director

RN BRFBEITERPNITES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 55 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
=ER M RERANITES

Ms. GUO Jing 43 Non-executive Director

EIE EHITESE

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung 48 Independent non-executive Director

el BIEBITES

Mr. LI Bida 69 Independent non-executive Director

FUSE BUERITES

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi 69 Independent non-executive Director

BREAA

BURITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (BREUR), aged 48, is the co-founder of
our Group, our chairman and has been an executive Director
since 12 November 2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of our Group. Mr.
CHEN has extensive experience in the Chinese herbal HPC
(*Household and Personal Care”) products industry, having
been engaged in the consumer chemical product business
for over 16 years. Mr. CHEN and Ms. WAN entered into the
HPC product business by establishing Guangzhou Bawang
Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of the Company)
in 1994 forseeing the growth potential of the HPC products
business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. He has been serving as a
research fellow in the Public Economics Academy of Peking
University bR RSB QAHLLOEERHIRP L since 2007. Mr.
CHEN is the spouse of Ms. WAN.
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Ms. WAN Yuhua (B E#), aged 44, is the co-founder of
our Group, our CEO and has been our executive Director
since 12 November 2007. Ms. WAN is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and marketing planning, sales and
distribution, and research and development of our Group. Ms.
WAN has extensive experience in the Chinese herbal HPC
product industry. She has over 15 years experience in the
consumer chemical product industry in the PRC. She also has
extensive experience in the sales and corporate management.
Prior to the establishment of Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics
Co. Ltd. (the predecessor entity of the company), Ms. WAN
worked with South China Botanical Garden, Chinese Academy
of Sciences FEIRIEFLERMEYIFTFT as an engineer. Ms.
WAN has been serving as the deputy head of the Chamber of
Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of Industry
& Commerce FEZETEEBEGEEDMMEEE since
2008. She was also elected Charismatic Leader in Chinese
Herbal Consumer Chemical Industry in China FREIFR %R 1L
TTEBDEEAY by The Election Committee of the National
Industry Leading Brand ZBIfTHBELCERBEEREATS
in 2008. Ms. WAN obtained Guangzhou Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurship Award EM¥TBRIBEIEIZEEEE in 2008
from Guangzhou Personnel Bureau E/M A%, a government
body, and Guangzhou Overseas Chinese Federation &M
MEREESKAE. Ms. WAN was elected Ten Excellent
Entrepreneurs for Chinese Brand Building A Bl f i & + K8
F1 K by China Enterprise Culture Improvement Association
in 2006. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in plant genetics
from South China Agricultural University 5 2 % KX £ in 1998.
Ms. WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN.
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Mr. SHEN Xiaodi (it/)&#), aged 44, is our vice-CEO
and executive Director. Mr. SHEN joined our Group in
January 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director
on 10 December 2008. Mr. SHEN is responsible for the
implementation of our Group’s strategic plans and the daily
operations and management of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. SHEN held a number of senior management roles,
such as deputy chief engineer in high technology enterprises
in the PRC and deputy general manager in asset management
companies. He has more than 10 years experience in
technology management, introduction of foreign capital and
management of enterprises, which could benefit the Group
by (i) efficiently and effectively managing the operations of
the Group; (i) implementing the new ERP systems; and
(iii) facilitating the Group’s future fund-raising activities and
strategic investments. Mr. SHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree
in engineering in 1986 and a master’s degree in engineering
in 1989, both from Xi’an Jiaotong University FHZ 383 A
B He also obtained a doctor’s degree in engineering and
a post-doctor’'s research certificate in mathematics from
Chinese Academy of Sciences # BIRIEZ [ in 1994 and 1995,
respectively. He was conferred a professional qualification as
a deputy researcher by Institute of Applied Mathematics of
Chinese Academy of Sciences H ElR}E20 & B S22 5 FT
in 1995. Mr. SHEN is the spouse of Ms. GUO Jing, our non-
executive Director.

MPEERE 4455 BREMNEFEEH
TERATES ALLER_FTZTNF
—AMAXREE YR _FFENF+Z
ATEEZERRMONTES - L
EEREWNTASENRE S LA
SEMNEEZEREE -RMAXEH
ZH LEEREIEZEASAEEER
- pImEFPEERRECXETIAET
AL EEEER AR BERIERLE -
BERMKEE HIEIAREREET

MEEBBIOFNER  LBIBIHA K
EEREAEENKLS  (\BERFERPES

LI AEBERREEETNED
LEBREMSAEER D - LAELER
—HN\ARERBARRBRETES £
B YRN—NANNFREALBA
BTEHELEN - FAD AR — AN
FR—NANEFRFSTEMNBHRTE
BIEUMBEERBLIRESE -1
—NWAAEF  RERETBEMNERER
BEMAMBIMTENERXRER - LKk
ERBMGEATESBRLLORRS -

28  BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F B (&£ &) 1= % & [R A &)



Directors and Senior Management

ESREEEHEAR

Mr. WONG Sin Yung (EZ1#5), aged 55, is our chief financial
officer and executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in
April 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director on 10
December 2008. He is responsible for the finance management
and control, accounting, auditing, company secretarial and
investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. WONG was an executive director of (China Ting Group
Holdings Limited) & & %z AR A 7] (03398) from 2005 to
2008. The shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. WONG was the chief accountant and finance manager of
Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial Consultants) Limited from
1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003, respectively. He also
worked for a certified public accountant firm from 1992 to
1994. Mr. WONG has over 25 years experience in corporate
finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG
obtained a master’s degree in human resource management
from Macquarie University in 1996 and a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong in
1999.
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Ms. GUO Jing (58&), aged 43, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. GUO was a senior accountant in a chartered
accountants firm in Canada since 2006. From 2002 to 2005,
she was a finance manager of FutureWay Enterprise Services
Inc., a company providing business consulting, accounting and
taxation services. From 1992 to 2001 Ms. GUO held various
senior management positions including finance manager,
deputy chief accountant, and chief accountant in Beijing Dali
Integrated Business Company 1t R A N4RE R /2 7). She
has more than 15 years experience in strategic planning,
corporate finance, internal financial control and management,
professional accounting, and taxation services, which could
benefit the Group by offering professional advice to the
Board on the overall financial control and management of the
Group. Ms. GUO obtained a bachelor’s degree in biomedical
engineering and instrumentation from Xi’an Jiaotong University
WL BAZ in 1987 and a master's degree in internal
combustion engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology
EFRETAE in 1992, She was awarded a vocational
qualification as an accountant by the PRC Ministry of Finance
FREIBAERER in 1997. She is a member of Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Ms. GUO is the spouse of
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi, our executive Director.
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Mr. NGAI Wai Fung (B#{21&), aged 48, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
He is currently the director and head of listing services of KCS
Hong Kong Limited (formerly the corporate and commercial
divisions of KPMG and Grant Thornton respectively), an
independent integrated corporate services provider, a vice
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the chairman of its membership committee. Mr. NGAI is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. NGAI
obtained a master’'s degree in corporate finance from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Andrews University of Michigan
in 1992. He is a doctoral candidate in finance at Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics /8B4 AKE. Mr. NGAI
has over 18 years of senior management experience, most of
which is in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control
and regulatory compliance for issuers including major red
chip companies. Mr. NGAI was an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of China Life
Insurance Company Limited A EASHRERHDER QA
(02628) from 2006 to 2009, and is currently an independent
nonexecutive director and a member of the audit committee of
China Railway Construction Corporation Limited B &A%
B BBR/AF (01186) and Franshion Properties (China) Limited
FHEiE (RE) ARAF (0817) and an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Bosideng International Holdings Limited (03998), Powerlong
Real Estate Holdings Limited EfEHEZRBR AT (01238)
and Sany Heavy Equipment Holding Limited ==& EIFR12R%
BR/AF] (0631), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock Exchange and/or the
New York Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LI Bida (ZE#3#), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. LI was the head of Department
of Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice of the PRC FRE alA S0
Bi&], currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers
and Notarization, Ministry of Justice AlAZPRAIAGEL{EIE
], from 1988 to 1992. He was also an arbitrator in China
International Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission
FREBBRCEE STHEZEE from 1989 to 1990. From
1992 to 1995, he served as standing deputy head of State
Trademark Bureau BIZREIZESE. From 1992 to 2001, he held
various positions in State Administration of Industry and
Commerce BIRX TE{THE RS including the head of the
Fair Trading Bureau 2¥X % /& and the head of Registration
Bureau ¥ :iff}/®. He was a consultant with a number of
companies, including Galanz Group #&BEI(EEE from 2001
to 20083, Perfect (China) Co., Ltd. &% (FE) BRERARA
&), Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. @5 =882 BR2AF] from
2001 to 2005, Ricoh China Co., Ltd. 3 (FE) #EERAQ
&) from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China) Co., Ltd. Zn#r (&
Bl) HARERBRZAR from 2006 to 2007. He is currently
a member of the board of directors of Intellectual Property
Institute of Peking University 1t 7K Z2 M E#EZRT, professor
of Renmin University of China Law School B A RAKEAE
B2 and Capital University of Economics and Business & #B
B FKE Mr. Ll obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from
Hubei University 81t K& in 1965.

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi (FREA#%%), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 April 2009. Prior
to joining us, he held various positions in the government of
Guangdong province from 1964 to 1998. He was promoted
to executive vice mayor of Guangzhou in 1992 and deputy
secretary of the Leading Party Group of Guangzhou Municipal
Government EMMBFEAHRIEZE in 1993. From 1998 to
2005, he was the chairman and secretary of the Leading Party
Group of Guangzhou Political Consultative Conference &M
Bt R EAHEL. Since his retirement from his positions in
the government in 2005, he held the position of vice president
of China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation FREIHREE S &,
a charity organization in the PRC. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in political education from South China Normal College
EFEMEEELFT, which is the predecessor of South China
Normal University = EI#5 K2 in 1964,
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Senior management SR EIEE
The following table sets forth certain information in respect of TERHEIEARBEMOESREEENE T
our senior management: BEH

Name Age Position/Title

4 F#e L 1oy 1

Mr. ZHU Liangfeng 73 Chief Research and Development Officer

FpE: it e RO B E

Mr. MA Shaochun 31 Chief Planning Officer

BLERE REIPOBEE

Mr. MO Zhiwen 40 Sales Manager

REX 4% & KR

Ms. HUANG Weiyan 37 Sales Manager

mEKRLL iH & IR

Ms. CHEN Quan 32 Key Accounts Manager

bR #E 20+ TEEPKRE

Mr. ZHANG Jialin 48 Manager of Investigation and Supervision Department

9K R M5 A B Eb AR

Ms. WAN Yuxian 47 Chief Administrative Officer

BEMlzE TR O 48 B

Ms. LUO Hailong 30 Chief Media and Publicity Officer

mEBRELL AR

Mr. LI Yihui 37 Chief Brand Design and Expansion Officer

REWE K & M RES IR OB E

Ms. GUO Xiaoping 37 Internal Auditor

NFE L A B0 2 B R

Ms. HE Xinyi 34 Chief Training Officer

fa] R A2 £ £ Falldh O 4R B

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun 31 Manager of Design Department
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Mr. ZHU Liangfeng (%= #), aged 73, is our chief research
and development officer. Mr. ZHU joined our Group in
October 2007. He is responsible for overseeing research and
development projects for the Group. Mr. ZHU has extensive
experience in research and development and refinement
of Chinese herbal chemicals. Prior to joining our Group, he
was an assistant professor at Harbin University of Science
and Technology MEREE T A (formerly known as Harbin
Electricity and Engineering College *& /&% T £ft) from 1960
to 1963. He began working as a research intern in South
China Botanical Garden, Chinese Academy of Sciences A&
Rl B EREY AT in 1963. He was promoted to assistant
researcher in 1979, deputy researcher and deputy director of
the research department in 1987 and was further promoted to
a researcher and director of the research department in 1990.
From 1989 to 1998, he was the liaison officer for the Asian
Pacific Information Network on Medicinal and Aromatic Plants
(the “APINMAP”) launched by the United Nations Educational,
Scientific, and Cultural Organization. During the same period,
he was also the responsible person for China National Center
of the APINMAP. He obtained his bachelor's degree in
chemistry from Sun Yat-Sen University # [ AZ2 in 1960.

Mr. MA Shaochun (2 %), aged 31, is our chief planning
officer. Mr. MA joined our Group as the manager of planning
department in April 2004 and was promoted to chief planning
officer in September 2007. He is responsible for the design
and scheduling of marketing and promotional activities, brand
building and management and developing our annual sales
and marketing plans. He has extensive experience in brand
management and market planning in the HPC product industry
in the PRC. Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a market
planning specialist with C-bons Group #ZE %@ from 2000
to 2002. From 2003 to 2004, he worked as a brand manager
with Softto Co.,Ltd. ZRXFRN AR AF. He obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in administrative management from Hubei
University in 2000.
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Mr. MO Zhiwen (E#&X), aged 40, is our sales manager.
Mr. MO has been with us since the establishment of our
Group. He is responsible for our sales and business channel
management. He has extensive experience in marketing, sales
and business channel development. Prior to joining our Group,
he worked as production supervisor in Zhanjiang Yuzhan
Oxygen Factory E/T#8EE:E Z A M from 1995 to 1997. He
was the regional sales manager of Exxon Mobile (Yuexi) Engine
Oil Center B®mAEE (EF) #BF Ly in Zhanjang from
1998 to 1999.

Ms. HUANG Weiyan (E1{2#), aged 37, is our sales manager.
Ms. HUANG has been with us since the establishment of
our Group. She is responsible for the customer service
management of our distribution channel. She has extensive
experience in sales and customer management. She
held various positions in our Group and was promoted to
sales manager in June 2006. She completed a business
administration program conducted by Guangzhou University /&
MR in 2008.

Ms. CHEN Quan (PR#E), aged 32, is our key accounts
manager. Ms. CHEN joined our Group in June 2005. She
is responsible for managing the key retailer accounts and
developing the retailer channel of the Group. She has extensive
experience in the HPC product industry. Prior to joining our
Group, she was a supervisor of major customers in Guangzhou
and Shanghai for Xiamen Yinlu Food Industry Co., Ltd.,
Shenzhen Branch EFIRERMABEMRAF. Ms. CHEN was a
sales representative for major customers and the leader of the
customer department of Guangzhou Ting Jin Food Co. Ltd. &
MNIBZRMAR AR from 2001 to 2003. She completed an
international economic and trade program conducted by Jinan
University 2 A2 in 1998.
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Mr. ZHANG Jialin (3RZ#%), aged 48, is the manager of
our investigation and supervision department. Mr. ZHANG
has been with us since the establishment of our Group. Mr.
ZHANG is responsible for the investigation of counterfeit
products and monitoring of infringement of our intellectual
property. Mr. ZHANG held various positions in the Group over
the years including marketing and sales positions. Mr. ZHANG
is the spouse of Ms. WAN Yuxian.

Ms. WAN Yuxian (B E1l), aged 47, is our chief administrative
officer. She is responsible for our human resource
management and sales cost auditing. She has been with
us since the establishment of our Group. She has extensive
experience in accounting and marketing cost control. She
held various positions in our Group and was promoted to
chief administrative officer in June 2008. She was awarded
Outstanding Lady {255 MiEEfE by Baiyun District Committee
of Communist Party of China FEIXEEENTAZERZE
@ and People’s Government of Baiyun District EM T HZEE
ARBF in 2003. She is the elder sister of Ms. WAN and the
spouse of Mr. ZHANG Jialin.

Ms. LUO Hailong (Z&#§88), aged 30, is our chief media
and publicity officer. Ms. LUO joined our Group in February
2005 as the manager of our media department and was
promoted to chief media and publicity officer in April 2008.
She is responsible for communicating with various media
regarding publicity, advertising and press releases. Ms. LUO
has extensive experience in the media and advertising industry.
Prior to joining our Group, she was the manager of media
department of Guangdong Rundu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd &
RHEEEE AR A R] from 2002 to 2004. She was the head
of the media department of Shen Zhen Jianong Company
Limited FIITIREXTEZREREIBR AT from 2001 to 2002.
Ms. LUO served as a media specialist with Shenzhen Waniji
Pharmaceutical Company Limited j&IIIE E 222 AR A 7.
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Mr. LI Yihui (B2£¥), aged 37, is our chief brand design
and expansion officer. Mr. LI joined our Group in 2004 and
was promoted to chief brand design and expansion officer in
September 2008. Mr. Ll is responsible for the promotion of our
corporate and product image, design and planning of our new
products and establishing our product display standards and
procedures. Mr. LI has extensive experience in the promotion
of corporate image and products. Prior to joining our Group,
he worked with C-Bons Group #E%5%E in Hubei from 1999
to 2004. He worked for Chemical Import and Export Co.,
Ltd. under the Department of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation, Jiangxi JTHAEAEINMEEE SHEER(THER O
73A] from 1993 to 1999 where he was responsible for the
promotion of corporate image and products. He obtained
a diploma in fine arts from Art College of Jiangxi Normal
University )T FaRD &6 K S22 2447 20t in 1993.

Ms. GUO Xiaoping (Z8/)3), aged 37, is our internal auditor.
Ms. GUO joined our Group as deputy finance manager in April
2008 and was appointed as our internal auditor in December
2008. She is responsible for assisting the Group’s audit
committee in reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal control system and provides
advice to the Board. She has extensive experience in finance
management of listed companies and auditing in accounting
firms. Prior to joining our Group, she was the vice-finance
manager and finance manager of Guangdong Pharmaceutical
Trading Company EREEBEE S+ from 2006 to 2008.
From 1999 to 2006, she was the finance manager of Guangxi
Beisang Pharmaceutical Group Limited & Fadt 4 B[ (H AR
7~ A] (Stock Code: 600556), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. From 1995 to 1999, she was an auditor and
audit manager in Beihai Zhucheng Certified Public Accountants
b8k (BE) A EET. Ms. GUO  obtained a
diploma in accounting from (Guangxi University) in 1999. She
was awarded a vocational qualification as an intermediate
accountant by the PRC Ministry of Finance FREIEFEES in
2001. She is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chinese Taxation
Institute.
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Ms. HE Xinyi (fiIfR1€), aged 34, is our chief training officer.
Ms. HE joined our Group in June 2005 as manager of the
training department and was promoted to as our chief training
officer in June 2008. She is responsible for managing and
implementing our training system and organizing training
and development programs for our employees. Ms. HE has
extensive experience in staff training. Prior to joining our Group,
she was the manager of the training department and product
planning department of Grandway International Cosmetics
Co., Ltd. HER B izm AR A R] from 1999 to 2003. Ms. HE
obtained a diploma in international trade from Huanghe S & T
College &0 BHE 2Pt in 1993.

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (%&F1&), aged 31, is the manager of our
design department. Mr. ZHU joined our Group in August 2003.
Mr. ZHU is responsible for the design of logos, packaging,
labels and our marketing materials. He has extensive
experience in the advertising and design industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. ZHU was a designer and art director
with Guangzhou Baiyang Advertising Co., Ltd. EMAEEEE
R~ 7] from 1998 to 2001.
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Code on corporate governance practices

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. It believes that the high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the
Group to manage its business risks, enhance transparency,
maintain high standards of accountability and protect
shareholders’ interests in general.

The Company has complied with the provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules as
the standards for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry with all directors,
the Company confirms that the directors of the Company have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Board of directors

The Board comprises eight members, including Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Vice-CEO, Chief Financial
Officer, one Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section headed Directors and Senior Management
Profiles on pages 26 to 38 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the
Group’s strategies and policies, approving annual budgets
and business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group
and supervising the work of management. The management
is responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the
leadership of the CEQO.

Governance Report
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For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. The Board follows
the requirements set out in the Hong Kong Listing Rules to
determine the independence of Directors.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order
to reinforce their independence and accountability. The CEO,
Ms. WAN is the spouse of Chairman CHEN and Non-executive
Director Ms. GUO is the spouse of Vice-CEO Mr. SHEN. Save
as disclosed above, the Directors are not otherwise related to
each other.

Four board meetings were held in 2009 and all directors
attended these meetings.

The remuneration committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Ms. WAN is the chairperson
of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are to make recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensure none of our
Directors determines their own remuneration.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held in 2009.
During the meetings, the committee reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy and made recommendations to the Board.
All committee members attended the meetings.

The nomination committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Ms. WAN is the chairperson
of the nomination committee. The primary duties of the
nomination committee are to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and
the re-election of Directors.

Two nomination committee meetings were held in 2009. No
nomination was made. All committee members attended these
meetings.
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The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-
executive Directors and one of whom possesses the
appropriate business and financial experience and skills to
understand the accounts of the Group. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. NGAI Wai Fung and other members are Mr. LI
Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. The Audit Committee was formed
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Company.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and
adopted with reference to the Code and “A Guide for the
Formation of an Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Audit Committee
is required, amongst other things, to oversee the relationship
with the external auditors, to review the Group’s interim and
annual results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness
of internal controls of the Group, to review accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisers as it determines necessary and to
perform investigations.

During the year,
following:

the Audit Committee has performed the

—  met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope

and findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of
the external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’s independence, objectivity
and the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and
interim announcements of the Company;
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— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters before recommending them to
the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the
Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report with the
management and the external auditors and recommended its
adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit
Committee have been addressed by the senior management of
the Company. The work and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of the senior management of the
Company and the Board were of sufficient significance for
disclosure in the annual report.

Two audit committee meetings were held in 2009. No
nomination was made. All committee members attended these
meetings.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The statement of the auditor of Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
forth in the auditor’s report on page 57 and 58 of this annual
report.

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a
sound and effective system of internal control of the Group so
as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations of
the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial
reporting and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations.
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The Board is also responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal control and procedures.
Through the audit committee of the Group, the Board review
the effectiveness of these systems on a regular basis.

Investor relations and communication with
shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels
with shareholders and investors: (i) despatching printed copies
of corporate communication documents to shareholders; (ii)
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii)
latest and key information of the Group are available on the
website of the Company; (iv) regular press conferences and
briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and analysts are
set up from time to time on updated information of the Group;
and (v) the Company’s Registrars serve the shareholders
respecting all share registration matters.

For the purpose of and in compliance with Rule 3A.19 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed Kingsway Capital
Limited as its compliance adviser for the period from 3 July
2009, being the date on which the Shares first commence
trading on the Stock Exchange and to the date on which the
Company dispatches its annual report in respect its financial
results for the first full financial year after the Listing Date.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, KPMG, for the year ended 31 December 2009
in relation to audit service and non-audit assurance service
(i.e. professional services for the IPO) are RMB1.1 million and
RMB4.5 million respectively.
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The Directors are pleaced to submit the Report of Directors
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing,
manufacturing, trading and distribution of Chinese herbal
products, including shampoo products, hair-care products,
skin-care products and cleaning products. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on
pages 105 and 106 of this annual report.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page
61 of this annual report.

Proposed dividends

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2009 of HK4.25 cents per share
and an additional special dividend of HK4.25 cents per share.
Upon the approval being obtained in the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the above dividend will be paid on or about
Thursday, 10 June 2010 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company at the
close of business on Tuesday, 25 May 2010.

Closure of register of members

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from
Thursday, 20 May 2010 to Tuesday, 25 May 2010 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
dividend and be entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre,
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183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30 p.m on Wednesday, 19 May 2010.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the financial year 2009 are set forth in note
22(d) to the financial statements of this annual report.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB1,339.4 million.

Major customers and suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2009, sales
made to the Group’s top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 9.0% and 3.1% of the
total sales of the Group. The Group purchased approximately
31.3% and 11.1% of its goods and services from its five largest
suppliers and the largest suppliers.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest four financial years is set out on page 150
of this annual report.

Plant and equipment

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
option granted by the Company are set forth in note 22(a) and
note 20 to the financial statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

Subsequent to the Listing Date and up to the year ended
31 December 2009, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Hong Kong Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2009 and at any time up to the
date of this annual report.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2009 amounted to RMB1.2 million.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
Ms. WAN Yuhua

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi

Mr. WONG Sin Yung

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. GUO Jing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung
Mr. LI Bida
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi
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Details of the Directors’ biographies are set out on pages 26
and 32 of the annual report.

In accordance with articles 84(1) of the Company’s articles
of association, (the “Articles”), Ms. WAN Yuhua will retire and
being eligible, offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with articles 83(3) of the Company’s articles
of association, (the “Articles”), Mr. SHEN Xiaodi, Mr. WONG
Sin Yung, Ms. GUO Jing, Mr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida,
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a director’s
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three year commencing from the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by no less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other, which shall not
expire until after the fixed term.

Each of our non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment
with our Company. Each letter of appointment is for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company has entered into any service contract with the
Company which cannot be terminated by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers alll
the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2009, the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they had taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and were
entered into the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”):
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Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held issued
Name of director Class of Shares Nature of interest B RER share capital
EERE 13 | BaHg K& HE FEAESL
CHEN Qiyuan Ordinary Corporate (Note 1) 2,100,000,000 72.3%
bR BUR o=y A A (HFET)
WAN Yuhua Ordinary Corporate (Note 2) 2,100,000,000 72.3%
B EE 5=} A A (MEE2)
SHEN Xiaodi Ordinary Personal 2,100,000 0.072%
wNE A 18 A
WONG Sin Yung Ordinary Personal 2,100,000 0.072%
E HE 1A
GUO Jing Ordinary Personal (Note 3) 2,100,000 0.072%
E A & A (F3E3)
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Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by CHEN Qiyuan and
WAN Yuhua. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to be
interested in WAN Yuhua'’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

2. WAN Yuhua is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by WAN Yuhua and
CHEN Qiyuan. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to be
interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

3. GUO Jing, the spouse of SHEN Xiaodi, is deemed to be interested in the
options granted to SHEN Xiaodi under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009,
so far as known to any Directors or chief executive of the
Company, neither the Directors nor the chief executive, had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they had taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, so far as known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, shareholders (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
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the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AMB AR BENRRIORE  HIRIE

& 7

MEIE GBI FE336R[ERETLR

EEENBRBADBRLARE -

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held share capital

BEREE ERHHE Bz & H FRESL

Fortune Station Ltd. Corporate 2,100,000,000 (L) 72.3%

Fortune Station Ltd. NG|

CHEN Qiyuan Corporate (Note 1) 2,100,000,000 (L) 72.3%
BR RUR A (M)

WAN Yuhua Corporate (Note 2) 2,100,000,000 (L) 72.3%
BEE ~aE(fE2)

FMR LLC Corporate (Note 3) 150,770,000 (L) 5.19%
FMR LLC A A (M EE3)

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position L— & S— %A

Notes: B2 -

1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital 1. [RESJR & Fortune Station Ltd. B EITARAH
of Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by 51.0%E = A A - W8 A7 Fortune Station
Fortune Station Ltd. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to Ltd. HEMBRHOPHEEREZ EFTEMRBRE
be interested in WAN Yuhua's interests in Fortune Station Ltd. BURH R B & EZE7E Fortune Station Ltd. Ay##

mPHEAER -

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of 2. B E#E A Fortune Station Ltd. © TR AHY
Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by 49.0%E A A - WH R B Fortune Station
Fortune Station Ltd. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to Ltd. HEMBRHOPHEEREZ - BEEMKEBE
be interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd. FEWIR ANREBURT Fortune Station Ltd. &9

mPHEAER o
3. FMR LLC is a privately owned corporation existing under the laws of the State 3. FMR LLC R —ZFBEEEBESNFENIEITE

of Delaware, U.S.A. and is the parent company of Fidelity Management &
Research Company (FMRCo), Fidelity Management Trust Company (FMTC),
Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company and Pyramls Global Advisors LLC.

ZRYWAB AR 2 Fidelity Management
& Research Company (FMRCo), Fidelity
Management Trust Company (FMTC), Pyramis
Global Advisors Trust Company #1 Pyramls
Global Advisors LLC #J & A ] ©
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme and Pre-IPO share
option scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes,
namely, the Share Option Scheme and the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, the purpose of which is to give the Directors,
senior management and employees an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company and help motivate its
employees to optimize their performance and efficiency, and
also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group. As at 31
December 2009, no options have been granted or agreed to
be granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

HIF-ZTZZhAE+-_A=+—H8 Bt
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A total of 4,200,000 outstanding pre-IPO share options were
granted to two executive Directors of the Company on 8 June
2009, which remained unexpired and unexercised as at 31
December 2009 and the details are as follows:

Number of share options

NANB  RAEHRERAE
4, 200 000 % Ei‘“ AR M R
FEERBME &=
B=+—H8  ZEEMN
WATE - HEA T -

H@#ﬂ

S %
e e
o T it g
K -y k4t
S+ S+

BRiHERE
Approximate
percentage of
As at As at  issued share capital
1 January Granted Exercised 31 December of the Company
Exercise 2009 during during 2009 (%)
price (HKD) #E the period the period HE (FLFERTERE  Exercise
Name of director Date of grant {TH{R ZEZhE il il ZZZhE HBHESL  Period
EEEB #iER (#71) —-A—-8 #¥HA fT#%E +-A=+-—H (%) fTRHNHE
SHEN Xiaodi 8 June 2009 Par Value - 420,000 - 2,100,000 0.072 4 July 2010 to 8 June 2019
NV LT NE HfE —E-EFLAMAZE
~NANR —E-NERNANA
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
mE —E-—FtAmMAE
—E-NEFERANA
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
|E - tAmMAZE
—E-NFRANA
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
mE —E-=ZFtAmMAZE
—E-NFERANA
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
H{E —E-NEELAMAE
—E-NFRANA
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value - 840,000 - 2,100,000 0.072 4 July 2010 to 8 June 2019
HER “ZTNFE  EE —T-ZHFtANAZE
~NANR —E-NERANA
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
mE —E-—FtAmMAZE
—E-NEFERANA
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
mE - tAmMAZE
—E-NFERANA
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
HE —E-=ZFtAmMAZE
—E-NFERANA
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HE —E-NEELAMAE
—ZE-NFERANA
Grand Total - 4,200,000 - 4,200,000 0.144
RT8%
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Report of the Directors
EEORE

Apart from the above, options totalling 10,332,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of which, options
totalling 210,000 shares previously granted to one employee
were forfeited in August 2009. The balance of unexpired and
unexercised options of 39 employees as at 31 December 2009
was 10,122,000 shares. Except for the options which had
been granted, no further options were granted prior to 3 July
2009, the listing date of our shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Date”).
Details of the valuation of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are set out in Note 20 under the section headed “Notes to
the Financial Statements” to this annual report. The value
of options are subjective and uncertain as such valuers are
subject to a number of assumptions and limitations of the
valuation model.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had
the following non-exempt connected transactions and had
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Production and Office Premises Lease

Agreement

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”)
entered into a production and office premises lease
agreement with Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd
(“Guangzhou Bawang”) dated 22 January 2008, pursuant
to which Bawang Guangzhou agreed to lease from
Guangzhou Bawang a production premises and an office
premises, both located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou,
the PRC. The term of the production and office premises
lease agreement is three years from 4 December 2007.
The monthly rent is approximately RMB184,083 and is
fixed throughout the term of the lease. We have also been
granted a right of first refusal to purchase the production
premises and office premises under the production and
office premises lease agreement. The production and
office premises lease agreement is renewable at the
option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month notice
prior to the expiry of the lease.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, pursuant to the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement, the
annual rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to Guangzhou
Bawang was approximately RMB2.2 million.

Bk ASN EZEENFNANB B
BEaX A ARMBEESAERERTS 25
10,332,000 O M B AR D L 46 T A
EE40%EE - HF  ZHART %R
8 42 2£210,000 8% f& 17 B BE A% 7 -+ #£2009
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=+—8  WEREEBITREITENER
TSR FER10,122,0000 - B 7 Ll B &
REMBERE B#E_ZTTNAFLA=
B BARBRNEEEBHARSFER
ARERETMZA(LETR]) BEMT
AR - RD BT BN G EF
RMBEHREWE20  ZEEHES T HM
BATERT - BETATANZERE
XA EEA ARG o

RIEEMRBE ALK BUE—TZNF
A=+—8 AX&BEETIFEHR

1. $ERERBRLOEBEHEREBS

FT(BEMNABABRARATHBEBIE
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HEEMNE T/ mERRDR (A
THEEIEMNBENDIL —MH4EE
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FTEMREMEMBERBLAS
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184,0837L ' WM EHNRIFT
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NIEMELE -£SEBRERBRAE
HEmMZTRBTEIRENAEESEH
AEH—EABRMTUNELD -

BE-TTAE+-A=+—8
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Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua are directors
of the Company. Guangzhou Bawang is company
beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms.
WAN Yuhua. The transaction contemplated under the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
constitutes continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
packaging material supply agreement with Guangzhou
Chenming Paper Products Company Limited (“Chenming
Paper”), pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed
to supply packaging material to Bawang Guangzhou
from time to time at fixed unit prices for a term of
three years commencing 1 January 2009. Bawang
Guangzhou and Chenming Paper will review the prices
offered by Chenming Paper at least once annually to
ensure that they are at market prices or at prices no less
favorable than those offered to Bawang Guangzhou by
independent third-parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, pursuant to
the Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of packaging material
by Chenming Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was
approximately RMB9.9 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company.
Chenming Paper is wholly owned by Mr. CHEN
Qiwen (Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s brother). The transaction
contemplated under the packaging material supply
agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
toothpaste container supply agreement with Guangzhou
Qiancai  Packaging Material Co., Ltd. (“Qiancai
Packaging”), pursuant to which Qiancai Packaging
agreed to supply toothpaste containers to Bawang
Guangzhou from time to time at fixed unit prices for
a term of three years commencing 1 January 2009.
Bawang Guangzhou and Qiancai Packaging will review
the prices offered by Qiancai Packaging at least once
annually to ensure that they are at market prices or at
prices no less favorable than those offered to Bawang
Guangzhou by independent third-parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of toothpaste
containers by Qiancai Packaging to Bawang Guangzhou
was approximately RMB4.6 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company. Qiancai
Packaging is wholly owned by Ms. WU Xiaotao (Mr.
CHEN'’s sister-in-law). The transactions contemplated
under the toothpaste container supply agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole,
and the respective annual caps are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that the above
transactions have been approved by the Board, that the
transactions were entered into in accordance with the terms of
the respective agreements governing those transactions, that
the transactions did not exceed the respective caps stated in
the Prospectus.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the financial year.

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which competes
or may compete with the business of the Group.
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The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees
in the PRC, and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the
employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans
are set out in note 2(j) to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2009, save as
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41
to 45 of the annual report, all the code provisions set out in
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the Company.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Listing Rules”). The Company has
also complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules and appointed three independent non-executive
Directors including one with financial management expertise.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee (inter alia) are to
review the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group. The Audit Committee also provides
advice and suggestions to the Board. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited annual financial statements of the
Group contained in this annual report with the management of
the Company and the Company’s independent auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B Lz BRD ¥R
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“‘company”) set out on pages 59 to 146, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

HBEIBER(EE)ERAERAAKRRZ
18 3 2 BB
(RAEHSEMEALHERL A])

BHMEERHNEOE146E A M H L HEK
(REERBRAR(TERRD®OAHME
& HEPBRER_ZETZAFTA=1+—
BattERrREERER  WREEZHA
HEENAHERR AHEARER 4
HEDEDRLREOHBESRER UARTE
ERpEE T YE L

EEHMBHRRNEML

EAREFEERREREHENZES
78 i 1 B B B 75 e 5 2 Bl DA e B ECR B iR
PV EBEZREREEE QLM 2585
BE -ZFETERAER EEk#EE
HEREEBEAA 2B HRERAEH AL
2 - LA B 75 R R T 17 A B R HRRF Sk 8 AR
ERMEAHERRL  EEREREENS
ABRE REHRBBR TNMEESENSEA
At e

H

RBENEE

BMNEERRBERMNFZE ZFM KR
RERERBR AEAEBBRRRE - K
LELASN - IR EE A BIEEM AR -
BAM AR AREZENAT HEFMEMBA
TRERRBEREL

BMERBEBGAMASEMNETERE
HAETERZ - ELERBERRFETER
ME - R RMITEZ  UEEBTIF
MHBBREREE N FETMERFERRAL -

Annual Report 2009 —ZEZE N FF3k  5H/



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIBMES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the group as at 31 December 2009
and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 April 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
EHERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_TTNAF+-_A=+—BLEE
(AARMITR)

Note 2009 2008
B3t —EThF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Turnover =% 5 1,756,001 1,411,248
Cost of sales 85 & Pl A (590,355) (509,324)
Gross profit EF 1,165,646 901,924
Other revenue H b ez - 484
Other net losses H i g8 558 (294) (779)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko AR (637,344) (512,285)
Administrative expenses T E A (75,756) (47,419)
_Profit from operations  #&®&=¥ 482252 341,025
Finance income 81 75 U A 6(a) 2,322 3,117
Finance costs WiEE A 6(a) (4,771) -
_Net finance (costs)/income &% (%A) WA®®E (2449) 8,117
Profit before taxation BRAT BB AR R 6 449,803 345,042
Income tax Fr 5t 7(a) (85,659) (63,268)
Profit for the year attributable ZAAFEREZFHEA
to the equity shareholders EEFERER
of the Company 364,144 281,774
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) SRZF(AR®T)
Basic AR 11(a) 0.15 0.13
Diluted s 11(b) 0.15 0.13

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTER146E MM T AR B REH —
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders o o ENANATIEZEAE ARBRE
of the Company are set out in Note 22(b). 15 St sE22(0) °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
a iR el aE &

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-_ZTAFT+_A=+—HILEFE

(AARMZIR)
2009 2008
—ETAF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Profit for the year attributable ZAAFEHREZFEA
to the equity shareholders EEFEFRER
of the Company 364,144 281,774
Other comprehensive income FREMEGEE WG
for the year
Exchange differences on translation ¥ & [} & & 7] Z A SM &
of subsidiaries’ financial statements %I 7~ Bt # ¥} % &9
in foreign currency ERER (103) 4,949
Total comprehensive income KAEEEEFEA
for the year attributable to EHFERGEKRE
the equity shareholders w
of the Company 364,041 286,723

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTE146E T AR BEHRERH —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEEESR

At 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)

R-TEAF+=A=+—A

(AAR®SIR)
Note 2009 2008
B3t —EENE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Non-current assets *RBEE
Plant and equipment 85 K 12 39,330 31,510
Prepaid advertising fee ENESER 6,081 —
e ™= 0 45411 31,510
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 14 60,384 51,992
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEMmERFIE 15 534,009 136,495
Amounts due from related parties JE U5 A B 7 FR08 25(b)(i) - 132,746
Pledged deposits TR 16 162,012 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkREEEYD 17 1,742,523 298,148
I 249928 619381
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k E Ath JE S 50E 18 293,839 171,997
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERREX 19 158,490 —
Amounts due to related parties JiE 1< BB B 5 3R E 25(b)(ii) 5,896 144,342
Current taxation JEAS BN ERFTIS 7R 21(a) 31,820 13,655
e _._._._____490045 = 329,994
Netcurrentassets = #"BAERE 2008883 289,387
Total assets less current HEERABAR
liabilities 2,054,294 320,897

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTE146E MM AR BHREN —
statements. i
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

EHEERARER(R)

At 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)
W=ZEAF+=A=+—A
(AANR®EZIR)

Note 2009 2008
B 3E —EThF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ~ EEHAEBE 210 20062 6,369
Net assets EEFE 2,034,232 314,528
Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital & 7 22(c) 256,134 —
Reserves x5 22(d) 1,778,098 314,528
Total equity EREE 2,034,232 314,528

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTE146E MM AR HBREL —
statements. a7

3

hva
o
[=]

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of ARREECEER_ZE—ZFNLAT+H

the Company on 15 April 2010. B E REERE -
Director Director
BF E=E
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
BR BSUR BExE
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Balance Sheet
BEEHER

At 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)

R-EEAF+-A=+—8

(AARESIR)
Note 2009 2008
B3t —EENE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBETF T
Non-current assets *RBEE
_Investments in subsidiaries  AKEAFMRE L
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b e W FIA 15 416,051 1,582
Amounts due from related parties JFE i B8 B 5 Bk IE - 194
Pledged deposits W T X 16 162,012 —
Cash and cash equivalent HekREeEEYD 17 1,031,999 —
I 1610062 1,776
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H th &~ I8 18 8,136 25
Amounts due to related parties & 1~ BB 5 FR08 25(b)(ii) - 9,344
I = 0 816 . 9,369
_Net current assets/(liabilities) ABHEE (Af)¥FE 1601926 (7,598)
Total assets less current HEE
liabilities BABEE 1,601,926 (7,593)
Net assets EEFEE 1,601,926 (7,593)
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital & 2 22(c) 256,134 —
Reserves & 22(a) 1,345,792 (7,593)
Total equity BB 1,601,926 (7,593)
The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTE14ERM T AR B HRER —
statements. o o

ARAEERER-F—FEMATH
At R TI % -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of
the Company on 15 April 2010.

Director Director
5% 5F
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
RR RRUR BExE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AHEEEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)

HE_ZTNAF+_A=+—HILFE

(AARM5IR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ANRERBEAEL
PRC
Share Share statutory Capital Merger  Translation Retained Total
Capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
REEE
RE  RAEE & BAGE ARG ERGE BRER BRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARNTT ARETT ARETR
(Note 22 (c)  (Note 22 (d)  (Note 22 (d)  (Note22(d)  (Note22(d)  (Note 22 (d))
(zo2(c) (Mak22() (Maea () (Ma22) (Hx22) (22 (d)
Balance at R-BENE
1 January 2008 -R—-RA&e - - 28,722 - 8,468 - 137,038 174,228
Changes in equity “EE\FRERE:
for 2008:
Total comprehensive FRGAENGER
income for the year - - - - - 4,949 281,774 286,723
Appropriation to BREATHE
statutory reserves - - 21,165 - - - (21,165) -
Dividend declared during FRERNRE
the year (Note 22(b)) (B =E22(b)) - - - - - - (146,423) (146,423)
Balance at R-ZENE+ZA
31 December 2008 and =1+-AR=-ZZhE
1 January 2009 —-R—-A&e% - - 49,887 - 8,468 4,949 251,224 314,528
Changes in equity “EEAERERE:
2009:
Issue of new shares B3R (Fit3E22(0)
(Note 22(c) 256,134 1,342,774 = = = = - 1,598,908
Total comprehensive income  F R4 A Wi B %
for the year - - - - - (103) 364,144 364,041
Dividends declared during ~ FRE kAR B
the year (Note 22(0)) (B £22(0)) - - - - - - (249,680) (249,680)
Equity settled share-based ~ LAIEZE B R 1D T
transactions (Note 22(d)) R 5 (H3E22(d) - - - 6,435 - - = 6,435
Balance at R-ZBZHLE+ZA
31 December 2009 =t+-R#H 256,134 1,342,774 49,887 6,435 8,468 4,846 365,688 2,034,232

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial FOTR 146 BN I AR B RETH —
statements. )
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EE ANy =~ — 1

iz ) BB %
For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in Renminbi)
BHE-_ZTAF+-_A=+—RHLEFE

(AAREIITR)

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T AREETF T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHELENESRE
Profit before taxation B P15 75 A1 A A 449,803 345,042
Adjustments for: KTRIEAE
Depreciation we 6,721 4,800
Net loss on disposal of BEREHENREF
plant and equipment B 1,415 1,860
Impairment loss for bad and RERRBERX
doubtful debts 1,549 538
Interest income on bank deposits THERFERA (2,322) (1,957)
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 515 BERERBX 1,987 -
Equity-settled share-based LAHE 25 45 B E’J A% 19
payment transactions FRNE 6,435 -
Investment income ®E W ﬁT’i - (484)
Subtotal NET 465,588 349,799
Change in inventories FE# (8,392) (10,009)
Change in trade and other receivables B REMERKEEZE (400,165) 6,531
Change in trade and other payables EH5REAM F’?f H RIEE & 114,423 (66,714)
Change in amounts due from JRE Lz B s 5 R0E iﬂ
related parties 132,746 2,451
Change in amounts due to JE 1 BA Bt 5 SR IE & &)
related parties (138,446) 12,637
Change in prepaid advertising fee ENESEE (6,081) -
Cash generated from KETHELENES
operating activities 159,673 294,695
Income tax paid B FER (53,802) (43,244)
Net cash generated from RETHELENESTE
operating activities 105,871 251,451
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENRESRE
Interest received 2 F B 2,322 1,957
Acquisition of plant BEWE R&E
and equipment (18,761) (12,151)
Acquisition of other investments 1S H 1z & = (410,000)
Proceeds from sales of other investments HEHMB ARG RE - 510,484
Net cash (used)/generated BEEE(FTA),/
in investing activities ELXBEFHE (16,439) 90,290

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial EO7TE146 B M s BB &K #) — &6
statements. 78) ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHBReRER(K)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_TTAF+-_RA=+—BLEE
(AARMTIR)

2009 2008
—EThF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEF T
Cash flows from financing activities METHELENEESRE
Proceeds from issuing of new shares BITHRATE IR 1,615,277 —
Payment of share issuing cost AT IR P ST AT BRCAR (5,145) -
Cash from bank loan and overdraft RTERRBIAMERE 158,490 —
Increase in pledged deposits 1R 1T FE a0 (162,012) -
Dividends paid BKE (249,680) (146,423)
Net cash generated/(used) BETEBHELE
___in financing activites (FR)ReF® 1,356,930 (146,428)
Net increase in cash and RERBRESEEY
cash equivalents B nFEE 1,446,362 195,318
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HBHNRER
at 1 January BEZEEY 298,148 102,830
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations EXRBEUBERS
on cash held r 2 (1,987) -
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—ZA=+—8®W
31 December RERRESEEY 1,742,523 298,148

The notes on pages 67 to 146 form part of these financial

statements.

FOTE146 AN ER/AMBIHKR N — &

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT 15 ¥ 2} MY &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REBHRBI  BAARETR)

1

Reporting entity

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 December 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2009 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “Group”). The Group
is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
household and personal care products.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
of the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

REEER
FLTEHBEBRZERBER QA
(TEXRB)NRZZEZELF+ = A

T-BERBFREHSRFIEE22
BE(—NAAR—F&EMS  Kixae kig
FEHREMETMR L AERE
WA R A A o Hak it 55k /) ik
/& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

BE_ZZNAF+-A=+—HI
FENAHVBRREBBEARAR
HIfBE A B (I AKE]) - KN&E
BXEXERERFEERBEAZ
BEMFER -

FTESHHE

KRB HRRTDRBEAR £
AzE8e((BReTEREZE
g1 B M BIBR MBS e R
A (MBI RS B 75 5 R &R
2 BRMBREERSEM
B 55 P (8 B BB B 75 3R
8 - B ER ([HER SR
R ) RABERE - AME R
R A B BECR RPN H 3
BRELBBHARIMAR
NR([EBBMRAM])EH LT
HAEE BB IRX - NEE
FTER AR B9 = 2 & 5T BUR Bt an
T o

BfResr LA R8SBRMTE
T AT R AR B RT B Bl R B 75 3R
HEL| - FLERR AR KB M
ARBAGHHEERERK
A AR F B o HRESTIR T
AEREAELEASEEH
B ZE R R BRIA AR B F5 ¥R R B
Hi N AR & 5t HA P # & 5T UK
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REARBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

68

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant
to the entity (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand except per share
data.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of polices and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 29.

2

hY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTBREXw=m

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2(i)).

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at exchange rates at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Annual Report 2009 — &=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥BERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REARBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

70

(continued)

The assets and liabilities of operations with
functional currency in foreign currency are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date. The income and expenses
of operations with functional currency in foreign
currency are translated to RMB at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and are presented within
equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

() Non-derivative financial assets
A non-derivative financial asset is recognised if
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets
(continued)

Non-derivative financial assets of the Group
comprise trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties and cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties

Trade and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2(i)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

72

(i)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative  financial liabilities are
recognised initially on the trade date at which
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial liabilities: interest-bearing borrowings,
trade and other payables, and amounts due to
related parties.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

hY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

0

Non-derivative financial liabilities
(continued)

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
related parties

Trade and other payables and amounts due
to related parties are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Ordinary Share

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental cost directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects.

Recognition and measurement

Plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (Note 2(i)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral
to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of
plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBERERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REARBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(M

(ii)

(iii)

74

Recognition and measurement
(continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and
equipment under construction, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses (Note 2(i)(ii)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction
during the construction period. Capitalisation
of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to plant and
equipment when all of the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
substantially complete.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of plant
and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day
serving of plant and equipment are recognised
in profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculation over the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of plant and
equipment less their estimated residual value.

The estimated useful
equipment are as follows:

lives of plant and

° Machinery 10 years
o Motor vehicles 5-8 years
o Office equipment

and others 5 years

2 FES®
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHE®

(iii) Depreciation (continued)
No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use.
Upon completion and commissioning for
operation, depreciation will be provided at the
appropriate rates specified above.

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual
value are reassessed at the reporting date.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the weighted average cost principle,
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of the production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

() Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount,
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

(iii) WE(E)
ERIBTHENE &
EEBEEE LERAFE
FAReE - B HEKREA
EIER - iR EFTEE
B ERRABFIRITE o

AEEENSEZHREH
BERNES L  AERF
REETRIGEEER

B ARKAS B A B R E AR
ﬁ%ﬁri 78 EXKTRHD%$
BRARAFE  XEEBA
ﬁ%&ﬂ%ﬁ‘@%%fﬁﬁm%&
ASLFTE MBI » LA M

RIES M ? A BLIE IR IE
%Fam 8 WRERE t|:1§IJ

DEMEEREER - AR
FERA B RBBET G
EERAEE T IRARHER
% o

(i) &MARE
HWEARBIRER
HZEEMHEHEREEN
MErARREREEEE
T AZeMEERR
RERE °

REBHKNAFENTRE
EREREENAREER
RIRFTERNERFTRO G
%’fﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬂiméfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
s

Annual Report 2009 —ZZ N EEwm /5



Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

76

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely
are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro-rata basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

0

(i)

Non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the assets.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff
welfare are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.

Defined contribution retirement plans
Obligations for contributions to local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when they are due,
except to the extent that they are included in
the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFTBER®)

(iii) Share-based payment transactions

(i) LIERSEHEABKHIHR

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/ credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHE®

Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding value added tax or
other sales taxes. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
and there is no continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending on
the individual terms of contract of sales.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

80

Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expenses, over the term of the lease.

Finance income comprises interest income on
deposits in banks and net foreign exchange gain.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using
the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on
borrowings and net foreign currency losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the project when the
remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence
both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEESFTBXw®

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

82

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance
sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for the temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary difference
when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (Note 2r(i)) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.
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M¥BERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

84

Operation segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operation
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2

hY

+

B HE @)

AEBEEHRRERINATE
BEERHEAAMBER - KE
H o RE RS EEZRM
BERHEERS - NEBER
BLaRHfERSAINNTE
BENPHERMBR LEED
B & B M8 5 BB 1A B 7 R 3K P B
HH SR

BrIE% S 0 b A AU &
B EmMREEE &
EBE  BTFPRA - DHEEM
SRERFN L AIXBRE
RENUEE > SAIERNE2L
ENEIEEMBHRE T E G
2 - KEDHBMERM S AL
TEKX - A& Ll KED &
o BRI E%R -

il

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F BIER (£ &) =K AR A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

M E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued one new IFRS, a number of
amendments to IFRSs and new Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

o IFRS 8, Operating segments

° IAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements
° Improvements to IFRSs (2008)

The Improvements to IFRSs (2008) have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
amendments were consistent with policies already
adopted by the Group.

The presentation of segment information in prior
accounting periods was based on a disaggregation of
the Group’s financial statements into segments based on
related products and services and on geographical areas.
IFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker
regards and manages the Group, with the amounts
reported for each reportable segment being the measures
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
making decisions about operating matters. The adoption
of IFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with
internal reporting provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management, and has resulted in different
operating segments being identified (see Note 4).
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MEERERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

86

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

As a result of the adoption of IAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately from
all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income
and expense are presented in the consolidated income
statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or loss
for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform
to the new presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expense or net assets for any period presented.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by a mixture of both
product lines and geographical segments. On first-
time adoption of IFRS 8, Operating segments and in a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has the following
two operating segments:

° Hair-care products (mainland China and overseas)

o Skin-care and other household and personal care
products (mainland China)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

Segment reporting (continued)

However, the above operating segments of the Group are
not identified as reportable segments for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 as the assets, revenue,
and profit for the skin-care and other household and
personal care products segment constituted only 2.5%
of combined assets of all segments as of 31 December
2009 (as of 31 December 2008: 5.6%), and 4.9%, 1.1%
of the combined revenue, combined segment result of all
segments for the year then ended (for the year ended 31
December 2008: 5.5% and 7.6%).

Among the hair-care products operating segment, the
sales in mainland China and overseas are not reported
as sub-segments for the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008 as the assets, revenue and profit from overseas
constituted only 4.6% of combined assets of hair-care
products operating segment as of 31 December 2009
(as of 31 December 2008: 0%), and 4.7%, 6.6% of the
combined revenue, combined segment result of hair-care
products operating segment for the year then ended (for
the year ended 31 December 2008: 0.5% and 1.5%).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

5 Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of the household and personal care products
including hair-care and skin-care products.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes and
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. The amount of each significant category of
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revenue recognised in turnover during the years is as AWAFERHSREWOT -
follows:
For the year ended 31 December
HE2+-_A=+—HLFE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Hair-care products EEEM 1,669,025 1,334,142
Skin-care and other household and EEREMERAEA
personal care products 1B E M 86,976 77,106
1,756,001 1,411,248

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenues.
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AE
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Bt %5 48 = B &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

6 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(a) Finance income and costs

6 FRFTEHATRA
B AR S B AT M 0B (GEA) T

5% I8

(a) BEBRAREH

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBEF T
Finance income B U A
Interest income on bank deposits R 17 17 Z | B W A (2,322) (1,957)
Net foreign exchange gain P& 5 M 7= 0% 58 = (1,160)
Subtotal e @322 8.117)
Finance costs Y58 A
Interest on bank borrowings HITERF B 2,231 —
Net foreign exchange losses b 18 K5 8 2,540 -
Suptotal MR -
Net finance costs/(income) MEER(WA)FHE 2,449 (3,117)
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6 Profit before taxation (continueq)

90

6

BRETBH Aala R ()

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=1T—HIFE

2009 2008
—EEAE ZEETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBEFTT
Salaries, wages and He ITERHMER
other benefits 84,027 166,404
Equity-settled share-based AR 2 S5 E W IR0 S 1+
payment expenses (Note 20(c)) & A3 (M 20(c)) 6,435 —
Contributions to defined FEHFGRIRETEIH
contribution retirement plan 4,627 4,330
95,089 170,734

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (Note
8(a)).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiary participates in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”) organised by the local authority
whereby the PRC subsidiary is required to make
contributions to the Scheme based on certain
percentages of the eligible employee’s salaries.
The local government authority is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s and
employee’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on the relevant income of the relevant
employee and in accordance with the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and related regulations.

BIRABRESHE (HE8@) -

RETFBRBEBESSDRAUNA - F
BB A ] 2 B E B P FIRR AL
B 57 E i FROR K18 A & 8 (T 5% &t
2 gt PEMRBRARARSE
BEREEBHEMNET B DL M&ET
EELHER - T BRARHMHAEER
BRAREEXNE2EERNKRE

AEBENAMEELAERERR
bt Bt 8 ([RE2
&) - RE‘H MBS FERD
LREBRE AEEMHEESYA
HEREENEEKRAEL MR -
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(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

6 Profit before taxation (continued) 6 PBRATEH AR F (50
The Group has no other obligations for payment Br bt 5RO - REE IS EEAM A
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of EERKKEEMERREEFNERTAN
employees other than the contribution described I -
above.

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-_A=T—RHIFE

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR T

Depreciation* e 6,721 4,800

Auditors’ remuneration % EUAD B & 4,378 4,294

Cost of inventories* FERA" 590,355 509,324

Impairment loss for bad and RERRBEERE

doubtful debts (Note 15(b)) (K 3E15(0)) 1,549 538
- Cost of inventories includes RMBS31,326,000 (2008: - FERABERE IKA R
RMB36,611,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which WEEHNREARARSE
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts 31,326,000 (Z BT N\F : AR
disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of these #36,611,0007T) * BRKEITE
types of expenses. FT A £ X3k M 5 6(0) 18 Bl 4% B8 79 %

R AR -
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7 Income tax expense 7 FIEFHEAX

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—AILEE

2009 2008
—EThF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Current tax BN ER B 18
— PRC income tax — HEREHR
Provision for the year FREE 63,731 56,401
Current tax BN ER B 18
— Hong Kong income tax — EBANEHR
Provision for the year FREE 1,866 498
Deferred tax EERIE
— PRC income tax — HEREHR
Origination of ERHEEBNES
temporary differences 20,062 6,369
Income tax expense FrEfipx 85,659 63,268
()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the () WBERSHESNEABRX
Cayman lIslands and the BVI, the Group is BEMBAIRAEN » K&
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman BBEMARSEE KK
Islands and the BVI. BEXBEESENEMAE
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

7

Income tax expense (continued)

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Bawang
Guangzhou”), the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, is a production-oriented wholly foreign
owned enterprise located in the coastal
economy open zone of Guangzhou. Pursuant
to the applicable income tax law effective
before 2008, Bawang Guangzhou is eligible for
the “two-year exemption and three-year 50%
reduction” tax holiday from 2006 to 2010.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session
of the Tenth National People’s Congress
passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC (“CIT law”) which started to take
effect on 1 January 2008. In December 2007,
the Implementation Rules of the CIT Law of
the PRC and “Guo Fa 2007 No. 39" were
promulgated to specify certain implementation
details and grandfathering arrangements of
the CIT law. As a result, Bawang Guangzhou
is subject to a unified tax rate of 25% from 1
January 2008, but it can continue to enjoy the
50% reduction in its applicable tax rate till the
end of the tax holiday, i.e. 2010.

7 FrE8®iE X )

(i

SR ) BB A ) FE
TF(EM) AR 2B
FEM NREL R EM S
A7 B IR (R A A B A O
HEELE RE_TT
J\4F LA B @ P B BT 1S A
ECBIEBMAIR-EE
NFE_Z-ZFHHEZE
B % =R+ ]85
B= -

RZZEELEF=A+X
H - ZB+EZEARAKRE
AEeFRAEEEZRE
BCR B ERTE A
(TFBIED) » FRER
—EENE—-—HA—HH
MER (PR EMRB
WA B e R 01 K& B 2%
200739 ® IR =TTt
F+ZRA%EM - BB
BEE TERFERB
EHREE - Et - BXTE
MB=ZZTEZNEFE—H—
H BB IR £ — B R 25% %5
o EEAEEZFER
MESONBREER - HE
MBEEEHTE(AI =%
—ZTF)RIL -
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7

94

Income tax expense (continued)

(i)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F BIER (&£ E) =K AR A 7

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of
the CIT Law, overseas investors to foreign
investment enterprises (“FIEs”) shall be liable
for withholding income tax at 10% on the
dividend derived from the profits of PRC
subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2008,
unless the tax rate is reduced by treaty.
Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax
Arrangements, the investor established in
Hong Kong which is the beneficiary owner
holding not less than 25% of the equity
interests of its PRC subsidiaries can enjoy a
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% on the
dividend received from its PRC subsidiaries.
On this basis, the Group has made provision
of withholding income tax on the distributable
profits generated by Bawang Guangzhou for
the year.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was
made by Hong Kong Bawang International
Trading Limited (“Bawang Trading”) and
was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year (2008: 16.5%).

7 FRIERBE @)

(i)

(iv)

R E AT EHAE %
Bl - BTN NF—A—
B - BRIEEERADVR KR
KR ERETI
BLEDNBINEESE
ALK B BB A B
M EY R B 10% TR H1 A
S0 o IRIE A B F B @
RESHB L REL
FXL R E B IRFFA
B Bff 8 & B MR 2 25% 1%
mAR/XAMEA - BIA]
FRRETEM BRI
P B BORL TR 0 A AR K
5% F Itk REE 25
AREEBFEEMELD
A 7 s A EHR TR 1
B -

BEBNEHBEBEHEDBE
BTEERESARAA
(BEEBEZDREFR
flEHFER B % A 8916.5%
(ZEZEN\F 1 16.5%)&F
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

7 Income tax expense (continued)

\]

FriS BB 2 (&)

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EENEF —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Profit before income tax B BT 15 75 A1 s 7 449,803 345,042
Income tax on profit before tax, %@ A 7 7 B 2 7% &Y
calculated at the rates MR E BB AR T
applicable to the PRC B AT 1S 0
operations 112,451 86,261
Effect of withholding income tax — F& 1 P 15 %4 &Y 57 28
(Note 7(a)(iii)) (Bt &£ 7(a) (i) 21,193 14,189
Effect of the difference in tax N/NEETRE Y =SNG
rates among the Company TRBENFE
and the subsidiaries 10,550 2,306
Effect on deemed taxable WRBERTIW AR
income (i) 2 (i) 1,377 3,483
Effect of non-deductible EEE -2
expenses 2,688 5,470
Effect of tax concessions (ii) HEEENFZ ) (62,600) (48,441)
Income tax expenses FrE®HmEx 85,659 63,268

()  Effect on deemed taxable income represents

deemed sales
promotional

in respect of

goods provided to customers

at nil consideration, which is calculated in
accordance with the CIT law of the PRC,
applicable from 1 January 2008.

i) WEAERBRANTE
ENEREER TSR
EE@OEEFEEK
A - HRBFRBEERBAM
HE BT N\F—A

—HEER -
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7
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CBAAREHR)

Income tax expense (continued)

Effect of tax concessions

represents the

difference between standard income tax rate
and preferential income tax rate enjoyed by the
Group as set out in Note 7(a)(ii).

The tax effects of temporary differences that give
rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
liabilities as of 31 December 2009 and 2008 are
presented below:

7 FRIERBE @)

(iy FHIBEEEH

2/

®=

BIREE

BT 15 75 B 3R B 32 B 5 7(a)
(IFTEAEEZENER
FTiSfifl KGR A =5 o

R-BZNAFR-

TENF

— = =

+ZA=+—H8 BHHRE
AEERBEENEREZR
MBS EZRMT :

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008

—sThE —EENE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEF T
Deferred tax liabilities arising E-_FTEN\F—H—HRE
from undistributed earnings PR EB AR RS IR

of PRC subsidiary since AR EAENIRERIE
1 January 2008 (Note 7(a)(ii)) 8 & (P 5E7(a) (i) 20,062 6,369
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

8 Directors’ remuneration

(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration of the

Company are set out below:

8 EEM=E

(a) FLFEFMEFHMT :

Salaries,
allowances Share-
and Dis- Retirement based
Directors’ benefits cretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total (note(i) 2009 total
#e-
BER RAKER RHEXfT ZBBAF
He ENRE A T EAR Nt (GE) fact
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETR AR¥T T AR% TR ARBT R ARB TR ARE TR
Chairman IR
Mr CHEN Qiyuan REREE - - - - - - -
Executive directors HTES
Ms WAN Yuhua BRELL - - - - - - -
Mr SHEN Xiaodi W& = 595 - 5 600 1,029 1,629
Mr WONG Sin Yung HEREE - 1,762 - 5 1,767 1,320 3,087
Non-executive director  F#TEZS
Ms GUO Jing BRTL 132 - - - 132 - 132
Independent non- B
executive directors FHTES
Mr NGAI Wai Fung REBLE 308 = = = 308 = 308
Mr CHEN Kaizhi BRREE 132 - - - 132 - 132
Mr LI Bida FPERE 132 - - - 132 - 132
Total FoE 704 2,357 - 10 3,071 2,349 5,420
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8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEMEuwm
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and benefits  Discretionary scheme payments
Directors’ fee in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total (note() 2008 total
2R RINER BkHxH ZZENE
e Enfla biAn AT EIH R et (FitzE() @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR

Chairman K
Mr CHEN Qiyuan B BUR &L & - — _ _ _ _ _

Executive directors HTEE

Ms WAN Yuhua BrEgt - - - - - - -
Mr SHEN Xiaod WNEEE - 136 - - 136 - 136
Mr WONG Sin Yung HEEREE - 1,247 - - 1,247 - 1,247

Non-executive director F#7EE

Ms GUO Jing BELL 2 - - - 2 - 2
Independent non- B
executive directors FUTES
Mr NGAI Wai Fung REEXE 16 - - = 16 - 16
Mr CHEN Kaizhi MRE R E - - - - - - -
Mr LI Bida FUERE 3 - - - 3 - 3
Total Foh 21 1,383 — — 1,404 — 1,404
Note: Bt 5
0] These represent the estimated value of share options granted (i) BEY-L:t: . WNGE:- 1 - ke
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. TEETERENGEE 7ZF
The value of these share options is measured according to BRENEBEDNIZRBAREBRND
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment YNHMZZHNETBESE -
transactions as set out in Note 2())(ii). BB EE2()) (i)
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEEBYWANZNHES  BERE
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 20. ERENEEERLRER &R
B 520 ©
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(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEMEuwm
(b) An analysis of directors’ remuneration (b) REEHERFHEEZ
by the number of directors and JIMmESEFMSIRAOT :

remuneration range is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—BHILFE

2009 2008

=t L3 X —ETNE

Number of Number of

directors directors

EEHA EEHA

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 6 7

HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 2 1,500,0005% T — 1

HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 22,000,000 T 1 —

HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 £ 3,500,0007% 7T 1 —

8 8

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 EeEFHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, SNEESHFMALTR = (==
three (2008: two) are directors, whose emoluments are NEFE RU)AES  HFEFHR
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments ME8IHEE - A= H B A T8
in respect of the five individuals with highest emoluments FriMazEmT

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—BILEE

2009 2008

—EETAE —ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR T

Salaries and other emoluments e R H M E M 2,798 1,751

Share-based payments f% 5 3 1+ 3,511 -
Contribution to defined contribution FE R IR B E R

retirement plans 50 103

6,359 1,854
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9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 & & A+ &)

(continued)

An analysis of the emoluments of the five individuals with

iz & = #r B A £ &9 % B o A a0
the highest emoluments is with the following bands: 3

- H

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008

—EEhEF —EENF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 £1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 & 2,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 % 3,500,000 7T 1 —
5 5

10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders 10 A QA B EZEH AE(LEH

of the Company F)

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders AN FREREA AR %R
of the Company includes a loss of RMB30,630,000 (2008 O ARRARERERNGAR
loss: RMB7,517,000) which has been dealt with in the #£30,630,000 THIE B (—Z T2 N\F
financial statements of the Company. E51E : AR¥7,517,0007T) °
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10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders 10 AR T HFHE A EER

of the Company (continued) A )
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s Fill & BEARRRF ARG (&
profit/(loss) for the year: B) 2 EE R -
2009 2008
—BBRE —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTF T
Amount of consolidated loss attributable & 5t A A 2 & Bf 7% ) % b
to equity shareholders dealt with WERTA A
in the Company’s financial statements EREEeHE (30,630) (7,517)
Final dividends from subsidiaries M8 A7 £ — 5K
attributable to the profits of the FEELAMNBEMEIR
previous financial year, approved REEE  RAFRA
and paid during the year B R AT 284,490 —
Company’s profit/(loss) for the year KR BER T
(Note 22(a)) (E518) (P 5E22(a)) 253,860 (7,517)
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity EEEMNATERSES AR,
shareholders of the Company are set out in Note 22(b). B & 1B SR BT 5E22(b) °
11 Earnings per share 11 BRAEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is FIREAREBN THREERNKRA
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity aEBERESREAEAENLS
shareholders of the Company of RMB364,144,000 T A K #364,144,00070 (=&
(2008: RMB281,774,000) and the weighted Z)N\F : AR 281,774,000
average of 2,497,753,425 ordinary shares (2008: JC) 0 N B BT T AR R E
assuming 2,100,000,000 ordinary shares were in ) 82,497,753,425 R (= EF
issue throughout the year) in issue during the year, JUE ] 3% 2,100,000,000 %
calculated as follows: TERBRREFEBIT)TEN

T -
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11 Earnings per share (continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

Issued ordinary shares
at 1 January

Effect of repurchase
of existing ordinary
shares (Note 22(c)(i))

Effect of increase
in ordinary shares
(Note 22(c)(i)

Effect of capitalisation
issue (Note 22(c)(ii)
Effect of shares issued
upon initial public

RN—A— B2 %17
I3 Ak

[B] 88 IR 5 38 A% Y
T2 (W 5E22(c)()

# h0 I 38 A% Y
T2 (W 5E22(c)()

BEARCBITHTE
(Bt #E22(c)(i)

BRARBERENT
BB E

TR e T8
At 31 December
®n+=ZA=+—8H
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
1 1
(1) (1)
10,000 10,000

2,099,990,000

2,099,990,000

397,753,425 —

offering

Weighted average number R+=—A=+—8
of ordinary shares at Eeg i gzopili:
31 December I 15

2,497,753,425 2,100,000,000

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB364,144,000
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) of 2,500,976,782 shares.

ERESEAMNDBERAQ AR
EEREZTAABMGERZF
A R ¥ 364,144,000 T * K& &
B N (B &8
2,500,976,782/% 5t & -
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11 Earnings per share (continued)

Weighted average number
(diluted) is calculated as:

of ordinary shares

11 8RAER @

BRRINETFHH(C#E)

BT
31 December
2009
s i
+t=A=+—H

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Effect of deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s share option scheme

ERiliviik: Bk o
ARRBRETETRES
EERITERMNTE

2,497,753,425

3,223,357

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 2009

R=ZBAF+=A=+—A
1B IR 07 F 2 B (2 #59)

2,500,976,782

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue as at 31 December 2008, and therefore,
diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share for 2008.

BERR_ZEZTNF+_H
=t RYEDBHITAELE
BRYENTRER A —TT
NENEREERNEGRE
REFAERE
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12 Plant and equipment 12 BMERFZHE

Office
equipment
and others Construction

Machinery Motor vehicles HAZR#ER  in progress Total
B EHTIA Hit HEIR o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2008 RZETNF—-—A—H 20,441 3,209 4170 1,080 28,900
Additions NE 4,426 7,999 1,554 1,620 15,599
Disposal HE (1,778) ] (259) - (2,041)
Transfer from construction BRAERIR
in progress 2,700 — — (2,700) —
At 31 December 2008 and RZTTNE
1 January 2009 +-A=+-8kK
—ZTZNF—-A—H 25,789 11,204 5,465 - 42,458
Additions nNE 6,526 1,043 6,624 1,763 15,956
Disposals & (1,608) - (65) - (1,679)
At 31 December 2009 RZTTNE
. TZA=t-R 0707 12247 . 1204 .. L8 . 5,741
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 January 2008 RZEENE-A—H (3,898) (1,565) (866) - (6,329)
Charge for the year FRGE (2,848) (1,196) (756) - (4,800)
Written back on disposals 1 E &R 133 - 48 - 181
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEENF
1 January 2009 +ZA=+-8BkK
—ZZNFE—-A—H (6,613) (2,761) (1,574) - (10,948)
Charge for the year FRER (3,281) (2,006) (1,344) - 6,721)
Written back on disposals HERAR 235 - 23 - 258
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
. T=A=STEE 0659 (481 (8% - — . (7At)
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2008 RZTTNE
+-A=+—H 19,176 8,443 3,891 - 31,510
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+-A=f+—H 21,048 7,390 9,129 1,763 39,330

All plant and equipment owned by the Group are located NREBBRENZLMELREZEHEHULN
in the PRC. B

o

!

104  BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 8 F BB (£ &) 2= ik B [R A 7l



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt %% 3R = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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13 Investments in subsidiaries 13 RIBARNIKRE
The Company
N
At 31 December
Bn+=—A=+—8©
2009 2008
—2EhE —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Unlisted shares, at cost (US$2) JEETRG
ZERASIE (2%7T) — -
Less: impairment loss A ORIEEK = —
At the date of this report, the Company has direct or MNAZHEAE » NAQ [ HEol B E
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries. The class BEATHBARINEZ - HAR
of shares held is ordinary. The particulars of these HEER AT R - ZEMB R A
subsidiaries are set out below: BENIAT :

Proportion of ownership interest

EhRAER
Group’s
Place of Particulars of effective Held by
incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary
Name of company and operation paid up capital A£8 the Company MK B  Principal activities
RS RURBE DY BRIRAZER EREE ADNRESR RNAKE ITEEXE
Forever Giants Limited British Virgin Island USS1 100% 100% —  Marketing and
(“Forever Giants”) ('BVI) 1Z£71 promotion of the
RERAES household and
personal care
products
EHRHEBERAR
FABEER
Maxford Investments Development Ltd. BV 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
("Maxford Investments”) RBRUBE no par value B
with US$1 paid up
as consideration
EXMET
fERKER
TRERERD
Lucky Rich Investments Limited BVI 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(‘Lucky Rich") RBRUBE no par valug B
with US$10,000
paid up
as consideration
B % {410,000% 1T
ERRERN
10,0000 % H A & 3
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13 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

13 RIMTB LB MRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

EkRAES
Group's
Place of Particulars of effective Held by
incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary

Name of company and operation paid up capital K58 the Company HHKEAR  Principal activities
DNAER RIREE Y BRIRAZER EREZ ALNABA BE XEER
Bawang International Investments Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding

Limited (‘Bawang Investments’) &% 15T el
FIERREERAA(IBERE)
Bawang Interational Group Holding Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding

(HK) Limited (‘Bawang Hong Kong’) &% 1T Rl
BIRREEAR(EE)ERAT

(I81F%))
Hong Kong Bawang Intemational Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Trading of household

Trading Limited (‘Bawang Trading’) &% 157 and personal
EABIAREHERAT care products

(18T85)) HERAR

EAEEER

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. the PRC US$12,500,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and

(‘Bawang Guangzhou”) it 12,500,000% 7T trading of

BIEMNBRADNITZEEREM))
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14 Inventories

(a) Inventories in the balance sheet

14 78

(a) REHBEMNERERE :

comprise:
The Group
NEE
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Raw materials JR A 8,024 4,194
Work in progress &, 7,170 4,500
Finished goods RUPK i 31,455 32,164
Packing materials B 13,735 11,134
60,384 51,992

(b) The analysis of the amount of

b) ERARZALEBERESRA

inventories recognised as an expense HMESEHIHWMT :
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
The Group
PN S
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR F T
Carrying amount of EEFERAEE
inventories sold 590,355 509,324
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15 Trade and other receivables 15 ESRHMEWKIE
The Group The Company
REE INYNE]|

At 31 December At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H R+ZA=+—H
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEZhEF —EENF —EZThEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTRE ARETE ARBTRE ARETR

Trade debtors and B 5 EWHRIER
bills receivable JE W R 1% 376,815 101,874 - -
Less: allowance for Ao R
doubtful debts (1,650) (101) - —
375,165 101,773 — —
Prepayment for purchase B B & #1 £} 38 {+
of raw materials RIA 2,017 1,004 - -
Prepaid advertising fee BNEEEH 150,622 26,956 - —
Amounts due from bl NG!
subsidiaries (Note 15(dl)) I8 (Ff 5 15(d)) - - 416,050 —
Other receivables H fib ' W KR 6,205 6,762 1 1,582
534,009 136,495 416,051 1,682
The credit terms granted by the Group to customers AEE-—METEFPIVENAE
generally range from 30 days to 90 days. The Group’s R - REBENEERREANMH T
credit policy is set out in Note 23(c). Generally, all of the 23(c) e —MimME r MBEE S KEAM
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered FEWMFIBIRE R —FALKE o

within one year.
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 EFREMBEWRFIE®E)
Included in trade and other receivables of the AEBEZESREMEWRIER
Group are trade debtors of the Group and bills HBAEENE S EWFRIE N E
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with WEE (EHNBRREREE) - B
the following ageing analysis by due date as of the #“ER B REAMERIIE
balance sheet date: RIBHASTHRRAT :

The Group
ANE
At 31 December
R+—-—A=+—8
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR F T
Current B &1 342,332 72,450
Less than 3 months past due i B 0 R 316 A 31,348 27,096
More than 3 months but less than B ZN3E AR
6 months past due L6 {E A 1,911 2,207
More than 6 months but less than B ZReE AR
12 months past due L1218 B 793 101
More than 12 months past due EH % 1218 A 431 —
376,815 101,874
Less: impairment loss o RERREEE
for doubtful debts (1,650) (101)
375,165 101,773
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable of the Group are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly (see Note 2(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

156 B 5 I H i FE W 518 ()

AEEBEFHEKFIARERE
BEREBREARKRESE -
BRAEERAWEZKIE
M e s - A REBLE
BEHRHE S BB RIE R ERE
& (R K sE203)3) °

REBEE(Z2RBERNEKX)

during the year, including mainly the specific losses, REANMEEWNT
is as follows:
The Group
KE
2009 2008
—gEhE EE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
At 1 January R—A—H 101 1,501
Impairment loss recognised BER R EEE 1,549 538
Uncollectible amounts written off & &4 1~ 7] Uy [@ & 48 — (1,938)
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—8 1,650 101

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s trade debtors
and bills receivable of RMB1,650,000 (2008:
RMB101,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that full amount of these
receivables cannot be recovered. Consequently full
provisions for these doubtful debts were recognised.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

nRZZEZTNFE + = A
=+t—H AXEEBAEAR
1,650,000 (ZZEZT )\ : A
R ¥101,0007T) #9Z 5 FE W 3K
BEREWEBEEERRE &S
WA - %5 TR E -
REBRFBAVHREESEKEE
B 711 & 7T At 2 8l [ /9 FE Uk
RIEFTA - AREEBEEHZE
REIE2HEBE - ASBELE
NZESEBRFEEAEARR -
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

156 B 5 & H B WK IE ()

I £ {8 5l) 35 B8 B8 3th 4% 58 A HH 3R
B B B 5 MR IR K e R

considered to be impaired are as follows: BEHERERSTWOT
The Group
AN S
At 31 December
Bn+=—A=+—8H
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired S #®@M=cmE 8480 72,450
Less than 3 months past due 0 H D A3 (A A 31,260 27,096
More than 3 months but less B % 3@ A 18
than 6 months past due HefE A 1,906 2,227
More than 6 months but less wmERZ e E AE D
than 12 months past due 121 A 598 —
More than 12 months but less BMEAZM12@ AEB D
than 24 months past due o241 A 31 —
. 38,795 .1 29,323
375,165 101,773

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

I 45 780 53 Ko Ok (B #Y U R IR BB
RRBEZNEF @ REODH
I % 38 B A TR RS 8% o

781 HR 18 3 4 1 R (B A9 B WK
REETBEYEFPAMR %%
EPFEASENXZREHR
o MRREREFPHEHRERE
RUEELEANE  BELF
RARDRR /AN
REAEER  BEEEREE
TR SERERERRS - &
SETEMLXFERTETM
E#fm e
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

These amounts due from subsidiaries of the
Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
are expected to be repaid within the next twelve
months.

B 5 K H ftt & W IE (@)

X B EY FE WP B A B 5ROR
RERE - 28 REHERK
T-EAREER -

16 Pledged deposits 16 KB EFEX

As at 31 December 2009, the Company pledged
bank deposits of HK$184,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB162,012,000) to China Merchants Bank, Co., Ltd.
(“China Merchants Bank”), as security for obtaining a
short-term loan provided to Bawang Trading by China
Merchants Bank (see Note 19).

R-ZZhF+-_A=+—8 " &
A 7] A 184,000,000 7t (/8 & M A
Eﬂ%mzomoooms’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 7Y
BTREEITROBRLQAA
PRERTT]) - MEE%I%%F%F%%E
TRESEHEZRNEER (R W
19) °

17 Cash and cash equivalents 17 RERBEZEY
The Group The Company
NEE NN
At 31 December At 31 December
R+Z—A=+—H R+ZA=+—H
2009 2008 2009 2008

—EFAF —TEN\F | ZTBBAFE —TITNF

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARBTE AR¥TR ARETE

Deposits with banks BFZBERE=MEA

within three months to ER =)

maturity when placed RITEHTR 264,150
Cash at bank and in hand R{T&# RIE S 1,478,373

150,958 = —
147,190 1,031,999 —

1,742,523

298,148 1,031,999 —
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17 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

As at 31 December 2009, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of RMB416,992,000 (31 December 2008:
RMB 147,190,000) are dominated in RMB and are
deposited with Bank of China and China Merchants Bank
in the PRC in the ordinary course of business. RMB is not
a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction
imposed by the PRC government.

18 Trade and other payables

17 BeRB2EEY @)

RZBEAFE+-_A=+—8 " &
SEE ARK416,992,000T (= F
ZENF+_A=Z+—H: AR¥
147,190,000t MR e KRB FE
MAARKEGE WERBEER
BEPFAFBEOPBERITRRA
BMIRIT - ARBUIFEBRLBNE
B ESELPBERINZ R R
3 E e 80 SN E B I BT AR R o

18 E 5 R H B 5IE

The Group The Company
& PN/
At 31 December At 31 December
W+ZA=+—H R+-ZHA=+—H
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF —EETNEF —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T AR®T T ARETTT
Trade payables 2 5 EMNRIE 115,330 60,754 — —
Receipts in advance SR e e 30,790 41,669 = —
Promotion fee payable FERTHEE & A 49,812 20,663 — —
Accrued payroll ERNIE 11,977 9,848 438 —
Amounts due FEAST I B A B RIE
to subsidiaries - — 149 —
Other payables and Hib R RER
accruals fEFTE A 85,930 39,063 7,549 25
293,839 171,997 8,136 25

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 30

days to 90 days.

HEERE THERYN FI0BEE
90H -
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18 Trade and other payables (continued) 18 ESZRHEMENSRIE®)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors EoRHEMENTEBEREESHEN
and bills payable with the following ageing analysis of the HIBEREMNERE  RN&EE B R H
balance sheet date: AoMMAERE AT -

The Group
&
At 31 December
R+Z—A=+—8
2009 2008
=L L% —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Due within 1 month or on demand 116 A A 2 H 5 i i@ A
EiE 84,662 39,483
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11 B & {E31& A & 2| & 30,668 21,271
115,330 60,754
19 Bank loans and overdrafts 19 RITERREX
The Group
PANE S
At 31 December
WR+Z—A=+—H
2009 2008
=L LR —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
Secured bank loan within 1 year 1FRNEIEA
BEMRITER 158,490 —
The balance as at 31 December 2009 mainly represented R-EBFENE+—_B=+—HBHHE
a short-term loan provided by China Merchants Bank to HEIEAEHETAAD TN KB
Bawang Trading, a subsidiary of the Company (2008: nil). N BTEZRENEBHER(=

TENEF &) -

Bawang Trading obtained the loan mainly to settle the ETESMEZES T ERANE
amounts due to related parties prior to the listing of the BN T T RIET /R BB T ERIE o
Company. Details of the loan facilities are as follows: ZEMEHEMT
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19 Bank loans and overdrafts (continued)

An agreement was entered into between Bawang Trading
and China Merchants Bank on 18 June 2009, pursuant to
which China Merchants Bank agreed to provide Bawang
Trading with a credit facility of up to HK$180 million (the

“Credit Facility”).

Bawang Trading drew down a loan of HK$180 million
under the Credit Facility agreement on 18 June 2009, at
an interest rate of 3-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus a margin of 1.5%, with a one-year loan period.

As a condition of the Credit Facility:

Bawang Group Limited, an entity wholly owned
by Mr CHEN Qiyuan and Ms WAN Yuhua (the
“Controlling Shareholders” of the Group), entered
into a pledge agreement (the “Pledge Agreement
[”) with China Merchants Bank on 18 June 2009.
According to the Pledge Agreement |, Bawang
Group Limited provided a pledge of assets in favour
of China Merchants Bank of HK$184 million on 18
June 2009, including the full amount drawn down
under the Credit Facility and the estimated interest
expenses. The Pledge Agreement | was terminated
upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the SEHK on 3 July 2009.

The Company entered into a guarantee contract
(the “Guarantee Contract”) with China Merchants
Bank on 18 June 2009. According to the Guarantee
Contract, the Company guaranteed the Credit
Facility in favour of China Merchants Bank effective
from 3 July 2009. In addition, a pledge agreement
(the “Pledge Agreement II”) was entered into by
the Company and China Merchants Bank on 22
July 2009. Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement I,
the Company provided a pledge of bank deposits
amounting to HK$184 million to China Merchants
Bank on 22 July 2009.

19 RITEF N B (@)

BIESEBBARTNR _ZTZTNF
NATNBRIZ— & - &t

FRRTRAERNBIESIRHER
% #180,000,000% 7T ) = E 88 &
([EE®#EED -

EITESRBEEREREN
TENFAAATABRBRERK
180,000,000/ 7T * FMIBEZ=MA S
BIRITEEREMI5%E - BX
HAE—F -

EREEBRENGN

— BRBREEMBEEXLL(R

SEMNZERRRNEZEHS
NETEBERATAR-E
TAFEASNATNABEBEIR
TERI LR 1 & ([ 19 10 &
—D) - BREERHZE— B
TEBERATNNR-_ZTZTAN
FARAATN\BRBERTIE
184,000,000 TT K & EE K
o EEEERENZEUR
BEAERXT - AR A RMARN
—ETNFLtA-HERBH
RATEREM - iR HE—
RE B R -

Eﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁirﬁAﬂ
(TERER] - BREERSE
ﬁ RARMABERITHEE
BERHER BZZTTNF
tﬂ:aiia 13/ NI /N
AEBHREITR_ZEZTNTF
+t A=+ = B F &
([ERBZE=]) - REBEEIFH
FmIZCARERZETNFL
AZ+tZHRBERITRH
184,000,000 7% JT #Y 58 17 17 3K
R o
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19

20

Bank loans and overdrafts (continued)

Moreover, Bawang Guangzhou obtained a standby short-
term bank facility of RMB100 million from Bank of China
on 24 April 2009, which was reserved for general capital
purpose. There has been no draw-down from this bank
facility as of 31 December 2009.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Board of Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8 June
2009, the Company conditionally granted certain Pre-
IPO share options to the directors, senior management
and employees under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The exercise of these share options would entitle two of
the Company’s directors to subscribe for an aggregate
of 4,200,000 shares of the Company, and forty of
senior management and employees for an aggregate
of 10,332,000 shares. According to the grant letters
signed by the Company and the beneficial individuals,
the exercise price of each share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is either at par value of HK$0.1 (four
people under this tranche including two directors), or at
HK$1.19, representing a 50% discount to the offer price
of HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty eight people
under this tranche). Each option granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting period of one
to five years, commencing from the listing date and the
options are exercisable until 8 June 2019.

19

20

BRITEREESZ @)

o BEBMR —ZETNLFMN
AZ+THBERGHBPBERTRH
MERBRRTEEEEARY
100,000,0007T * A& B {E— R &
BEEe BE_ZTTAF+_-A
=+ RAYERRULIRRITEER
o

UREREENRHD AR
2
BEEeR_ZEZN\F+=_A+B8#
HEBERAFAREAERETS - R
—“ZETAFENANB  KARBIF
R E e X AR ERTBARER
ZmMEE SRETEERENEES
RY¥FETER AMEESATERE -
THEHEERER FARRMWA
B ERHE A £4,200,0000% & A 7]
BH - ARAEEREEEMNEE
B A $£10,332,000/% 2 A &) I 15
BHER - BRIEBAQAREFETIHA
FAIMETERG  BRAREEH
BRETSIETHERBROITERE
BEBEMBEOIBITUATELY - H
PEEMBESE) L1198 T « Al
B2 BEETREMB238E TiNE
50% (38 ATERLSI) - IBIBE X AH
BENEREFEELNSHBER
TS FH AR LT AR
—FERF  cFTAERENER=
T—AFNNANBRITE
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 LUEREEMRH X3
)

(continued) (&

Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
BREZR TEGE BRESHH
Options granted ETEENBARE
to directors:
—on8June2009 — —EZAFNANH 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZEENFLAZHEBIF 106
—on8June2009 ——EZAFENANA 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFLAZHEG2E 104
—on8June2009 ——EZAFNANH 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ETNE+LAZBREHIF 106
—on8June2009 — —EZAFSANA 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
TN FLAZHE4F 104
— on 8 June 2009 —ZZETAFNANA 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNE+LAZHREHSE 104
Options granted ETEENBAE
to employees:
—on8June2009 — —ZEZTAFSANH 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZEENFLA=HRBIHF 106
— on 8 June 2009 — ZZEZNFANANA 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFLAZHER2E 104
—on8June2009 — —ZEZAFSA/NH 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZENFLA=HBHIF 106
—on8June2009 — —ZTETAFENANA 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLAZHE4E 104
—on8June2009 ——EZAFSANH 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZENFEA=HBHEF 105
Total share options & F B IE & & 14,532,000
granted
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 URERZEEWRHD AR
)

(continued) & (&
(b) The number and weighted average (b) BERENBRMEFIHT
exercise prices of share options are as EEWMT :
follows:
2009 2008
= St t £ K
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number of price Number of
EFEH options mEFH options
TEE BEREHEA THEE  EREHE
(in RMB) ’000 (in RMB) ’000
(AR®) T (AR®) +

Outstanding at the beginning 7 4 718 % K17 &

of the year - - — —
Granted during the year FREH 0.63 14,532 — —
Forfeited during the year FRRR 1.05 (210) — —
Outstanding at the end WA R B i RAT R
of the year 0.63 14,322 — -
Exercisable at the end RERFF AT
of the year - = — _
The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 R-ZFFAF+ZA=+—H
Sz o g LA 7 i g
had an exercise price of HK$0.1 or HK$1.19 and a ﬁ*ijﬁﬁ@EﬁHx’f&E’ﬂ TRER
weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.43 0.1 7L 81.19 7% T INAEF
years. B RIERE QN FH/.43F o
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 LUEREEMRH (I3
(continued) 2 (:

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a binomial model. The contractual life of

BREBREZRRBNALE
E2ERLBRENAAEBE
AR REBERENAAEE
T M R A5 - BARE
MAENFHREZELNGE

the share option is used as an input into this model. 28 o
Fair value of share options and assumptions BEEAOAEERE:S
2009 —EEhE
Weighted average fair RETE B MEES
value at measurement date (HK$) NREBEECERL) 2.0
Share price (HK$) AR E (B T) 2.268
Exercise price (HK$) TEE(ERT) 0.1 or (=X) 1.134
Expected volatility 8 88 18 52.8%
Option life (in years) AR EFH(F) 10
Expected dividends TEEIRR B 0%
Risk-free interest rate 1 3 B A1) 2.84%

The expected volatility is based on the average
of the historical daily volatility of ten comparable
companies as of the grant date over the shorter
of 10 years and the period up to the listing date.
Expected dividends are based on management’s
best estimate. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

EERE D RBEEANEERE
MTHRETRRERBRBET
FRERLBRAEETHAZ
f(MEREE)NBEFEE
BNEEE - Bt S XTI H
EEEFLHREMT - T8
AEREONE AT EE R AE

EfHAEEATE -

RERBB/RTERED K
A ERMEINRBERET
BHNAREER X KREE
RZARAE  TIS AR BRI T BB AX
R B o
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and

assumptions (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, equity-
settled share-based payments expenses amounted
to RMB6,435,000 (2008: nil) were recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

21 Income tax in the balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet

Zogﬁéﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
(&)

(c) MiRELREERR®(E)

REBEEZE_FTFTNLF+=A
=+—BLFE ERAHIE
HRTHEANDUERSEED
BOXHHRAZIEEAAR
#6,435,000C (ZEZF )\ F
) o

21 EEERERANAEHR
(a) RERWEA MM R

represents: &
The Group
AN S

2009 2008

—ZEThF —ETNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBEFIT

Provision for PRC income tax FAPE TSR EE

for the year (Note 7(a)) (Pt 5E7(2)) 63,731 56,401
Provision for Hong Kong FRNEBNEHEE

Profits Tax for the year (Mt3E7(a))

(Note 7(a)) 1,866 498
PRC income tax paid BB EH (33,443) (43,244)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBMEH (334) -

31,820 13,655
Balance of PRC income tax wmAFED
and Hong Kong Profits P EIFTS B R
Tax relating to prior years & 75 NS B4 eh - —
31,820 13,655
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M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

21

The deferred tax

Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

liability

21

recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

REHBEERBRANERNE
EHREEEREFANEFHN
T -

Deferred tax

liability arising

from

undistributed

earning of

PRC subsidiary

M E A R

RPRBFNEED

EERBEEE

At 1 January 2008 R-—ZZEZENF—H—H —
Charged to profit or loss FFAEZE 6,369
At 31 December 2008 R_ZETZNF+_-_A=+—H 6,369
At 1 January 2009 RZEZENF—HA—H 6,369
Charged to profit or loss FFAER 20,062
Payment REZA (6,369)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNFE+_A=+—H 20,062
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components

22 A -EEERKRE

AEEE G

aE N/

o B E A B

B HR 4] B2 B R 4 o 2 TR Y B B
BRHPZS| - K
N AR & A AKE D H A 1)
HAREHRcHNESF BN

BB Bt s

of equity between the beginning and the end of the S ¢
year are set out below:
The Company ¥ /N
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Capital Translation (accumulated Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve losses) equity
BHRA/
Loz RE  BREEE EXRE EIRE (RHFE)  EREE
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFTT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2008 R-BEN5-B-H
g — - - - (80) (80)
Changes in equity for 2008: —ZEN\EEHEH
Total comprehensive income FRGENALEE
for the year - - - 4 (7,517) (7513
Balance at R=ZENE
31 December 2008 and TZA=+-8k
1 January 2009 “2EnE-A-H
e - - - 4 (7,597) (7,599)
Changes in equity for 2009: —ZENFREZEEEH
Dividends approved in respect BEREZEFERE
of the previous year 22(o)(i) - - - - (249,680)  (249,680)
Purchase of own shares BEEFkG
— par value paid —BEfREE 22(0)f) - - - - - -
Shares issued under initial BADEBRERTZRG
public offering 256,134 1,342,774 - - — 1,598,908
Equity settled NEEEENRH
share-based transactions RS - - 6,435 - - 6,435
Total comprehensive income FRGENRESR
for the year - - - 4 253,860 253,856
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-ZENE
TZAZt-HE&EH 256,134 1,342,774 6,435 - (3,417) 1,601,926
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Bt %5 48 = B &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHHAN

22

CBAARESR)

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 22 BRAN -~ B R KR B (@)
(b) Dividends (b) R

(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) FLFEEBFEAER
shareholders of the Company BEEMGEKRE
attributable to the year

2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
Final dividend proposed after EEOBBIRERIRS
the balance sheet date of Hﬁ B -8REAR
HK4.25 cents per ordinary 7B 42511
share (2008: RMBO0.12 per (ZZEZNF : Bk
ordinary share) L@k AR®0127T) 108,622 249,680
Special dividend proposed REEBEEIRED
after the balance sheet date FRIRE BEER
of HK4.25 cents per ordinary 7B 42511
share (ZEZTNF : &)
(2008: nil) 108,622 -
217,244 249,680
The final and special dividend proposed REEE B 18R 28 < Hf
after the balance sheet date have not been R BT RAREER
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet BEHERALAEE -
date.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity (ii) RERAREXRETLT
shareholders of the Company BaBgAZTHABLE
attributable to the previous financial BB EERFMEBE
year, approved and paid during the year

2009 2008
—EENF —ZZETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETFTT
Final dividend in respect E LA M
of the previous financial year, NATBEEERKRE
approved and paid during
the year 249,680 —
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MEERERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

22 RA -~ B RKRE @

Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITERS
2009 2008
—EENF —EENE
No. of shares No. of shares
B 7#E K8 E
(’000) RMB’000 ('000) RMB’000
(F) AR¥T T (F) ARBFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRO1BITZ
HK$0.1 each =ik 10,000,000 880,500 - —
Ordinary shares, ERTRAR
issued and EER
fully paid:
At 1 January w—A—H - - - -
Shares repurchased (i) (el 5 A% 13 (i) - - - -
Shares issued (i) I B R ) 10 1 - -
Capitalisation issue (i) & AL B 17(i) 2,099,990 185,156 - —
Shares issued under BAARBE
initial public offering (i) 17 2 & {3 i) 805,000 70,977 - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2,905,000 256,134 - -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EARBAEABRUERARE
RHBLE - REARRBEZE L
ESRk—ZEREE -ARA
MRHEEMS IEEBER

FERS#EES -
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(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(i)

Increase in authorised share capital and
shares repurchased

The share capital as at 1 January 2008
represented the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company amounting to US$1
(equivalent to RMB7 yuan), which consisted
of 1 ordinary share. Pursuant to a written
resolution of the shareholder of the Company
passed on 10 December 2008, the Company
repurchased the existing ordinary share in
issue at par value (the “Repurchase”) and
increased its authorised share capital by
HK$1,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB
882 yuan) by the creation of 10,000 shares of
HK$0.10 par value each, which were issued
to its shareholder, Fortune Station Ltd. (the
“Issue”). Both the Repurchase and the Issue
were settled in April 2009.

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to the resolution of the Company’s
sole shareholder passed on 20 May 2009,
2,099,990,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at par value on 3 July 2009 to
the sole shareholder of the Company by way
of capitalisation of HK$209,999,000 from the
Company’s share premium account.

22 R

(i)

(i)

Annual Report 2009 — &=

fE B R IRE )

i 00 7% 7 B R I AR AR
2

A
B IR K 45 7K 4N A

ETHBRAEERAR
7)o  HBRRE1IRER

IR - IRBAAFRERZ
TENF+ZRARTHB
Hﬂﬁiﬁﬁi 71;3 ! $@
RIEHEERREBEAE %
THE ﬁﬁx(f@ﬁﬁﬂ
I i 8 1% ¥ 10,000 f& &
B ™ {E0.107 T B iR 1%
(B 317 T E KR Fortune
Station Ltd.) ([%17]) -
1% HOK TE AR AN 45 501,000
BILTHEROARK
8827L) - B s REITE
AZZEENFMHATEK °

FELEHRT
BEAREE—RER
—EENFRAZ-TH
BBEHRAER AR
FERABADARARE
AR #9 # BR %8 209,999,000
BILTEARL - HEER=
TEZAFLA=ZAMEA
NAIE—RRETE R
2,099,990,000 f% & A% m
BOVB TR T @A -
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iii)

126 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F BB (£ &) £ ik B IR A 7

Initial public offering

The shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of the SEHK on 3 July 2009,
with a total number of 2,800,000,000 shares,
among which 700,000,000 shares (25% of
the total number of shares of the Company)
were issued to the public. The gross proceeds
received from the global offering were
approximately HK$1,666 million.

Moreover, the over-allotment option referred
to in the prospectus of the Company dated
22 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”) in relation to
the global offering of the Company’s shares
was fully exercised on 3 July 2009 in respect
of an aggregate of 105,000,000 shares (the
“Over-allotment Shares”), representing 15%
of the shares initially offered under the global
offering before any exercise of the over-
allotment option. Immediately after the issue
and allotment of the Over-allotment Shares
by the Company, approximately 27.7% of
the issued share capital of the Company was
held by the public. The 105,000,000 Over-
allotment Shares were issued and allotted
by the Company at HK$2.38 per share,
being the offer price per share in connection
with the global offering. The gross proceeds
from the global offering after the issue of the
Over-allotment Shares were approximately
HK$1,916 million. Listing of and dealing in
such Over-allotment Shares commenced on
the Main Board of the SEHK on 8 July 2009.

22 A& EERRKRE

(iii) BXLPARE

ARAIMNBEHR=FF
NELAZBREFHE
MR ERLT &
2,800,000,000 A& A% 7 &1
i) 700,000,000 A& B 13
(HERARRR RN B
M25%)E 1T T R R A
T - 2RBEEMERER
# 49 % 1,666,000,000 &
5T o

N RRABRNZFE
AENA-Z+ B F%
EHAEZKEELRRAR
MHBERER(TERE
72 1) Bl /Y B B8 B IR
ER-_ZTEZTNFLH=
HERHITE  SREH
105,000,000 A% f% 17 ([ 48
BWREERH]D - BER
BEZREETUHRE
WM H15% (KRITHE
F BB ARER) - B
BE AN X A B 17 & BE B iR
LR MDE  AQEE
BITRAL27.7%H AR
ATHEHE - RARIRER
2388 L (AN 2KEEW
FREBEEE)ZTREE
% 105,000,000 P& i3 58 &
B - BITHBBEER
DEERBEENMEHE
4 % # & 1,916,000,000
BIT o ZEMBRERAG

—EENFEANB#E
EEBBMIMER ETR

oo ==

BE-
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised

(M)

22 IS~ Bk RE

(iv REERREBRKIT

share options at balance sheet date FRyRERREE R
2009 2008
Exercise —EEAE ZETN\F
price Number Number
Exercise period {T#H THEE A L gE]
4 July 2010 to —E2-TF+LAWAEZE HK$0.1 8,400,000 —

8 June 2019 —E-AFRANA

HK$1.19 5,922,000 —
14,322,000 —

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in Note
20(a) to the financial statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
of the Company is governed by the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The
funds in the share premium are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BOBRERTRHEARBEAR
DRI - BAREE—
FEFBIIBN M B HRRI T

20(a) °
(i) BEFRE
KRR FIRA R ERAER

XHAEEBRAVE(EE
RIFTARE - BRIFERER
EAR SN RSN N
NREARNEERERK
FEIHER - BRIAR
BN B A B R A AR
ROKBE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2()).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group, Bawang
Guangzhou. Transfers to the reserves were
approved by the board of directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou, which is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in the PRC, is
required to transfer at least 10% of its net
profit (after offsetting prior year losses), as
determined under the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company
Law and the articles of association of the
entity. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to the
equity shareholder. As of 31 December 2008,
the statutory reserve balance has reached
50% of the registered capital of Bawang
Guangzhou, hence, no further transfer to
statutory reserves was made since 2008.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

22 A~ EERKRE @

(i)

(iii)
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RAxm

BT ARRREE /R RE
RITEAED - BERE
T HHM A A B ERRH
AE2()R 17 32 B & 5F K
RNEXHEETER °

P & & E o

P EUXE R RIEARE
o B AR B e AR B DA B AN SR
BB BARBEEE
ME R B ERR R o EH
MFBEESIEMNES
SHE -

BEEMDINP BRI
SIEBERE - HARE
FEg AR RRR - B
B F & D 10% 80 3 )it
MOBRHAEFENERA
BIE—REERE B
ERBEREITE AR
ARZEREBNRARER
RE B EE T B R E50% 4
Ik - BEEZREEERR
BmRA AD KBS A
T-RZZBENFE+-A
=t—8  BIEMX
EfftRREHDEZTMR
AH)50% @ At — ==
NEFREABRIEE FE
fEE# o

—REERBA AER
fAEFEN BB
B) NAEBRRER
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M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iv) Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang Hong Kong,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired all the equity interest of Bawang
Guangzhou amounting to US$12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company
owned by the Controlling Shareholders,
at a consideration of the same amount.
Accordingly, the share capital of Bawang
Guangzhou was eliminated and a merger
reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

(v) Translation reserve
Translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements in foreign
currency.

(vi) Distributability of reserves
The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2009 was RMB1,339,357,000. The Company
had accumulated losses of RMB7,597,000 as
at 31 December 2008.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital
base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Group defines the capital of the
Group as the total shareholders’ equity.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

22 IS~ Bk R E o

(iv) & 66 0E

RZZEZE+F+_A=+
B ARFZ2EHBAR
FIEBUREEREK
512,500,000 THI 8 T
BN 2w (2 AT AE
B REEN —RARF
g) AMBTEIEMAOK
RIEE S - HERAER
EHELAOHHEE -

(v) ERGGER
P& H B IERE NG
FTERNMEIRRAMELED
TEERZRE -

(vi) w96 s
RZZEZENLE+ A
=+—H ' &AR2aKA
HoRGEHEEEARK

1,339,357,000 7T ° &N A
AR-_ZEZENF+ A
=+—HHNZFEBEBEAA
R #7597,0007C °

AEBERHREERFRIZE
RER - LRFEEARTS
(EESR SRS AR E 35
R -AEEBKERNERBBR
B -

AR AR E AR E R B HED
HONRERRERS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 sRiEREERAAEE

23 Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group has exposure to the following risks in the AEERBEEBBEPAZIAT
normal course of business: [ fg

e  Foreign currency risk o HNER R

e Interest rate risk . ﬂ X [E g

e Credit risk s FERR

e Liquidity risk e mHEELRAR

This note presents information about the Group’s AMFEEFAEBAEE AR i
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s R ANEEFHEEEERRADB
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and = BREERF

managing risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for EEerRBERYNEBRLRE

the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework.

The Group’s risk management policies are established
to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The
Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

MEREERE -

A& EFIERREEBRR - @A
RoMASEMERSRR  RZ
HEEORR ERREFEE - AR
BRI SEERELRIAA
$EIEHH$MJJ—LMEEEBZ%&§
7 ARBRT ISR R AN B XK
E’J“@J AEBEEHEZEBEINE
BAREERF  BRALEZALER
MEERE  EMERETHEES
BB RE N B AE o

AEBAZINER R EIR
BEERAEMR ZHEEB LA
VHMIHEE’JFEH&,M &R ER
AEER Eﬂs&%u,ﬁ%%gﬁtlﬂ
ﬁéiéﬁguﬁl\ﬁﬁfﬁ%

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases and other transactions
which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 £2REBEERAAEE
values (continued) (%)
(continued)

Included in assets and liabilities are the following FABERBBEANERRE
amounts denominated in a currency other than the B LAINE 5 E &) 3E W
functional currency of the entity to which they relate: T

At 31 December

R+=ZA=+—8
2009 2008

—EBEENF —ETNEF
Cash and cash equivalents BRERERELZEY
HK$ ('000) B (F) 1,686,944 146,729
US$ ('000) Zx(Fr) 302 3,000
SG$ ('000) o (Fx) - 180
Prepayment FEARIE
Us$ (000) Ex(F7T) 1,777 1,559
Trade and other receivables £ 5 & H b & It X 18
HK$ ('000) BT (Fr) 19,905 7,477
Bank loans and overdraft BITERREX
HKS$ ("000) B (F) (180,000) —
Trade and other payables ESgREMEMNRE
HK$ (000) BT (Fr) (5,728) (2,156)
US$ (°000) Ex(Fr) (1,105) (167)
Amounts due to RS RE

related parties

HK$ ('000) BT (Fr) = (9,534)
US$ (°000) Erx(Fr) = (18,471)
Current tax payables PSRN HA B 18
HK$ ('000) Bt (FT) (1,740) (566)
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 £REBREERAAEE

values (continued) (#)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
the bank deposits, prepayment, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
loans and overdraft, other payables, the amounts
due to related parties and current tax payables. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD”) and United States Dollars
(“usD”).

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity is calculated based
on the major net foreign currency exposure of the
Group as at the balance sheet dates, assuming 5%
shift of RMB against HKD and USD are as follows:

Results from a 5% strengthening of the RMB against
HKD and USD on the profit after tax and retained
profits at 31 December 2009 are shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

\
)

$'§IE§E’_T—% 8 5 3K

f’f%&ﬁﬂﬂfiﬂﬁ IE &
H&F%Hﬁ HIA - RITERNE
3o Eﬁf1ﬁ RIR F’?fﬁf'%
RN IE&JEHEWJ%WE??E?%
ZINERR - EHUMREABRNE
BEERET(EBT])RET
e

WRESH
REASERGEEBRNEZI
FE % B2 AT E R SNE SRR D
FMTURRARELETR
ETTIEXRFEE) :

RZEEAF+_A=+—8
MARESBTRETHE
5%38 Bk B 18 m F MR B i
FlEEHIMT - ZOMBREHB
Hi@ s (LERMER)REFT

A
= °

Increase/(decrease) on profit after tax

and retained profit

B B 18 05 F) 12 B8 1358 A3 n Ol

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

R=-ZBNE RZZEZTNF

+t=A=+-8B +-A=t-~8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARBF T

Effect in RMB’000 UARBFTIE

HKS$ I (66,891) (6,260
us$ ETT (332) 4,811
SG$ g T = (43)

A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above
currencies at 31 December 2009 would have
had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all other variables remain constant.
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M¥EERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 2@BEBEERAABME
values (continued) (48)

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits
and interest-bearing short-term loan are the major
types of the Group’s financial instruments subject to
interest rate risk.

The Group does not anticipate significant impact to
cash and cash equivalent dominated in Hong Kong
Dollars because the interest rates of these cash
and cash equivalents are not expected to change
significantly.

The Group’s interest risk primarily arises from cash
and cash equivalent dominated in Renminbi as well
as the short-term loan granted to Bawang Trading
at an interest rate of 3-month Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate plus a margin of 1.5% (Note 19).
Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase of 25 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase
the Group’s profit before tax by approximately
RMB650,000 (2008: nil).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date. The 25
basis points increase represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

RekReEEY  KEEXK
M ERHRITERRASE
FENZANXRBTEN SR
TH-

ANEE W RTERAEATE AT
AAENRERREEEYNE
ARE HASBHTZERE
EBReFEMNNEIEEE
&

AKREAZMNEREBRERRA
AARBAENREEIREF
BY URBEEFREHE
HER BAEMNER=EAE
B IRITR X I B N1.5%: &
(M3E19) - AEBEARETF
MEFFEMEEM DRI AR
ERMERRE AR BENX
Rz

R_BEZAF+-_A=1+—
B BFXLEE-FASEER
mATAHMA]B#EEXERFT
2 - 7S5 B A9 BR B AT 5 A
24 A R ¥650,0007T (=
TZZENF:F) o

R AT T B 2R
PR E B IR - 25EXH
80 5 B B R R A A
HHEET - EFEAHA
R4 12 80 T 4 B BY T ST 1% -
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group has established a credit policy
under which credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These receivables are
generally due within 30-90 days from the date of
billing. Credit limit is established for each customer
which represents the maximum open amount
or credit term without requiring approval from
the Board of Directors, these limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s
benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group chases
the customers to settle the due balances and
monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing
basis. The Group does not collect collateral in
respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the
total trade receivables due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers as follows:

23 eREREERAALEBE

EREREREEFPAEHMT
ARG HTELBTHANEE
MEFAKERZMBERN
Rk BERRIEREARE
BWE 5 LEMEWREA - &
BEERZY —EFEHEE X

KEEEZEERARR -

AEENEERREES XM
EPHERNBATE - A&H
EREY—EFABX By
BT EERANEFRETER
FE o X E R ERIE — RN
BEH HH30E90H K
B BEREEFPEZMNERR
HIEHAKLESSHENTS
EREERERE  FHERE
BAEFERF - THAEAEEE
RIZEMR A LAEMNER &
AEBRS - AEEREFA
WEIB&E & WIRBERNMNK
BR - AEETERESRE
it JE U R TE W B H @ o

AEEE-—ERENERET
Bk ATAEREERATP
EEREFPHEZRKFIAL
]

At 31 December

R+=—RA=+—8H
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
Due from FEUA T A 5078
— largest customer — &AEP 6% 13%
— five largest customers — HRAREF 15% 37%
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(REERBAHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group
to the credit risk.

Other than those trade and other receivables that
impairment losses have been made for (Note 15(b)),
there are no other significant credit risks identified.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash on demand to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and longer term;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and
liabilities approximate their respective fair values as
at 31 December 2009 due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

23 @rﬂﬂ B EERAAEBE

EmiERERSEHEERR
RAZEZREENREE -
AEErERAAZHNERR
RIEHEEIR ©

BREFHEREBRENE S RE
L /& U 3K 38 (B &£ 15(0)) Hb
I 4 3 Al E b E K (E AR

% -

REBEERERIEAEEREELZRE
TR M B EENER - &
E.Efﬁ/mibﬁiﬂ )
% RERRE-REER

//%Tf%ﬁ)?t%’]m/m@éﬂﬂg
MEHNEE  EAKEHA
EENERINEBERIBER
BeVER -

AEERRERERRTTH
RefEl WneHEBRHEEE
HRBEEHK  ETBREE
%Aﬁﬁ%m%%%ﬁm@

KK TV BERE o

EREMeEMEERABHR
REANIEH  MZFeRIA
R-ZBFAF+=-A=+—H
MREEREE QA EERES
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

24 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2009 not provided for in the

24 FEIE

@ R-=ZTHrh&E+_-A
E+t—HiEEREMBHEE

financial statements were as follows: AR TEARIENT :
2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT
Contracted for B4 3,503 —

(b) At 31 December 2009, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-

b R=-—FETBAFEF+=A
E+—H xKEARTR

cancellable operating leases are HEEHEREANXREKRR
payable as follows: BEHELEHEWMT :
The Group
AN S
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2009 2008
—ZEEAF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Leases expiring: FAAR T3 BB B ED -
Within 1 year 1FER 2,777 3,952
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 686 2,777
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 730 686
Between 3 and 6 years 3E6F 1,217 1,947
Total @t 5,410 9,362

The significant leasing arrangements under
operating leases include the lease of the production
premises and office from Guangzhou Bawang
Cosmetics Co., Ltd. as set out in Note 25(a).

KEHEETHEIERERH
(BERAENBELHBER
RAEREERERPAE
R Kt sE25(a) ©
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25 Material related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the directors
are of the view that related parties of the Group include
the following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

RS &

25 EREBIERS
BHE_STZNF+_A=+—HIt
FE ESREAEEMNBEH LR
FEATAL/ QA :

Relationship with the Group
B 52 B WY BA R

Mr CHEN Qiyuan
BREUR S 4

Ms WAN Yuhua
BEEZLT

Actual Reality Inc.

Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging
Materials Co., Ltd.
BINTERBEMEBRAR

Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products
Company Limited
EMERELERAR

Guangzhou Bawang Comsmetics Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Bawang”)
BMBEE/BBERAT ( TEMNEE])

(M

Production premises and office lease
agreements

Bawang Guangzhou, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a production premise and
office lease agreement on 22 January 2008,
pursuant to which Bawang Guangzhou leased
from Guangzhou Bawang the production
premise and office building with a total floor
area of 16,735 square metres. The term of the
lease under the agreement is 3 years with a
fixed monthly rental payable of RMB184,083,
commencing from 4 December 2007 .

Controlling Shareholder
PERRAR R

Controlling Shareholder
PERRAR R

100% owned by the Controlling Shareholders
HIEARAR R 100% S

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

ERB AR B RE VM R EERK B 42 )

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

ER AR B RE Y M R EERK B 42 )

Effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders

IR R 100% B kR

(i) SEBERMLEHE
i &
FITEM(KRAANEE
MEBARD REMEBIR
—EENF—HA=Z+=H
RINEERERPHAEAR
Bz Bt - BEEM
MENGIHAALERR
516,735 77 K HY A& EE iR
ERPHAEETF - Wi
HTIHWHEBHBR-_EZTLF
T AMARER - AH
=F BAEMNETEHES
B ANR¥184,0837T ©
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25 Material related party transactions 25 EXREEER R Z (&)

(continued)

(ii) Purchase of raw materials from related (i) MEARSEBERME
parties
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging & M 1 & 5% & % 1 £
Materials Co., Ltd. HRAF 4,624 4,268
Guangzhou Chenming Paper BEMNERK R
Products Company Limited AR A A 9,925 6,902
The directors have confirmed that the basis of EXCHR - L
consideration for the above purchase of raw FEERMENEEEZ R
materials from related parties is the prevailing BEERBBITME -

market price.

(iii) Utilities expenses paid on behalf of the (iii) RERKEAZFHKEE
Group
2009 2008
—EELF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
Guangzhou Bawang BM&HEE 5,733 —
The directors are of the opinion that the EERA LN LW
above transactions set out in Note 25(a)(i), 25(a)(i) ~ 25(a)(ii) k2 25(a)(iii)
25(a)(ii) and 25(a)(iii) with related parties were Fir 5| B2 BB 5 O X 5 TH T
conducted on normal commercial terms in the HEEXEBBEFIRERY
ordinary course of business. FIRFGETT o
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions 25 ERXEBARS @)
(continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) BRABAEHRESR(E)

(continued)

(iv) (Repayment of)/payment of advertising (iv) (MEARAFEEERETSE
fee paid by a related party on behalf of BExEEER) #H
the Group MABRAREEEZGH

EBEEH
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
Actual Reality Inc. (42,891) 4,225

(v) Repayment of trade receivables (v) PERERRSRFTEE R KUk
collected by the Controlling BWEZERRE
Shareholders

2009 2008

S —EEINE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF R ARET R

CHEN Qiyuan PR BUR - (2,505)

(vi) Net short-term advances from/ (vi) REEZEERERREMNE
(repayment of advances to) Controlling FTHEBEH (MR
Shareholders and Guangzhou Bawang BREEMNBEEER

®)B#
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
CHEN Qiyuan PR RUR (104,318) 11,188
Guangzhou Bawang BEM&HEE - (5,016)
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions 25 EXEBAIRS @)
(continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HRABAHRSR(E)

(continued)

(vii) Sale of non-household and personal (il PENEEHEFER
care products business related AEAEEEREEH
equipment to Guangzhou Bawang BB E

2009 2008

=1 —FTN\E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AREET T

Guangzhou Bawang BEM&HEE - 691

(viii) Short-term advance to Guangzhou (Vi) RN B EZRHEH

Bawang B
2009 2008
—EBhEF —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®ET T
Guangzhou Bawang BM&HEE 834 20,213
(ix) Repayment of advance from Guangzhou (ix) EMHELIEEER
Bawang
2009 2008
—EBhEF —ZTEN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Guangzhou Bawang BMEHEE 888 20,850
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(x)

Pledge of assets provided by Bawang
Group Limited in relation to a short-
term loan

According to the Pledge Agreement | entered
into by Bawang Group Limited and China
Merchants Bank, Bawang Group Limited
provided a pledge of assets in favor of China
Merchants Bank of HK$184 million on 18 June
2009, including the full amount of the loan
borrowed under the Credit Facility of HK$180
million granted to Bawang Trading and the
estimated interest expenses. Such pledge was
released upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the SEHK on 3
July 2009. Please refer to Note 19 for details.

As at the respective balance sheet dates, the Group

(M

25 EREBMAIR S (&)

(x)

GISKERRLAFME
HMERREENREEN

BEFETEEFRARHE
R R 1T 5] 3 B0 3K 48 1
F— RZETHhFERA
+NB BIEBERARQ
ARBIEHEETHE
EEEETHNEEER
180,000,000 7% 7T & f& &F
FEMY UBEETE
= 25 A 2 1 184,000,000
BT EERRT - BEK
HEERARARIBRNE=
ZEENFEA=ZBRES
B 22 BT AR _E TR B T DA AR
Br o FIBEBE2HME19 -

REFEER  NEBEERERT

had the following balances with related parties: AR
Trade and other receivables (i) BRARHEMEKHRIE
2009 2008
—EEhAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREETTT
Non-trade related EE 5 i
CHEN Qiyuan BR BRIR - 132,692
Guangzhou Bawang BMEHET - 54
— 132,746
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions 25 BEREE LR F (&)
(continued)
(i) Trade and other payables (i) BHFRE#MESSHRE
2009 2008
—EEhAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Non-trade related & 5 i
CHEN Qiyuan BR BRIR - 104,317
Actual Reality Inc. Actual Reality Inc. - 36,792
Guangzhou Bawang BMEHET 2,657 134
Trade related £ 8 5) 18
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging & M T & % & 2 # £
Materials Co.,Ltd. BRAR 1,136 601
Guangzhou Chenming Paper & N &2 B 4% &
Products Company Limited BRARA 2,103 2,498
Total HaEr 5,896 144,342
The above non-trade related balances are L ERIEE B R MM AR

unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. With the exception of the
amounts due to Guangzhou Bawang, all these
were collected/settled before the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
SEHK. As at 31 December 2009, the balance
due to Guangzhou Bawang mainly represented
the utility expenses paid by Guangzhou
Bawang on behalf of the Group from August to
December 2009.

The amounts due to related parties by
the Company as of 31 December 2008
represented the expenses paid by Controlling
Shareholders on the Company’s behalf.
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(BREERBI  BAAREIR)

(continued)

events

25 Material related party transactions 25 BEREE LR Z (@)
Remuneration for key management personnel, TEEBABTMBENTS
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors N TAEEES K
as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest HIOMEEUERTEENS
paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as BBEAT
follows:
2009 2008
—sBhf —TENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Short-term employee benefits EHEE R 3,004 2,408
Contributions to defined FE HFOR ARG EI K
contribution retirement plan 207 287
Equity compensation benefits & 17 52 15 4@ F 4,296 —
Total it 7,507 2,695
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note FMmBE ATBIRAI(R
6(b)). Bt sE6(D) ©
. e + 4
26 Non-adjusting post balance sheet 26 FABEEHRSEIE
On 14 April 2010, the Board has resolved to propose a R-ZFE-—ZFTFNA+HE EF
final and a special dividend to the shareholders whose SEERBANR_FT-—FTFAHA
names on the register of members of the Company at —ThBAEEREERKELEM
close of business on 25 May 2010. Details are disclosed B B SRR 3 SF R AN RIS © #F 18
in Note 22(b). 2 Bt sE22(b) °
. . X eBp =
27 Comparative figures 27 LB F
As a result of the application of IAS 1 (revised 2007), RABRKREFENFEIHR(ZTZTL
Presentation of financial statements, certain comparative FEI)MBEREI®E T L
FEMRETFEAREREAFE

figures have been adjusted to conform to current year’s
presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009.
Further details of these developments are disclosed in

Note 3.
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(B =B HAN

28

29

CBAARER)

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Fortune Station Ltd., which is incorporated
under the laws of BVI with limited liability and beneficially
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

Significant accounting estimates and
judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting application
of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results
to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to
be considered when reviewing the financial statements.
The following principal accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value.
The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimation.

28

29

EBNBREHR

RZZEENF+ZA=+—H #E
ERBAEBERBI QA R&KE
%Il 77 AFortune Station Ltd. ° ZZ A &
RBEBRZBHEEAEKINE
RATF  r BARBUREERERTEL

EREA c AR &R A H
NRERANB®RE -

FESE TR E

et RAFEHFBEEZ T - LA
BELRLREGAZRSER 21
BHAKREHBRNERBIER TE
EEBAENSEM -

EREREARR  HELRFEZ
ERRNEANEMTIARRESE -

AR 2HRERBBALBRRESZ
ENHBEE OREFHVBHRRK

Bl TEERNEER - NIEEER
B 7 K i L Bt 765 i 3% s AT BR AR Y
REBH @ RAEE -

REBEGOFBREER - MW
FEREREEGTAIERFHA
NEREFE - AEESFR
AEEMAEBFHERGRE

BE(WE) - WEBEMFTHIR
ERE  AARBRFEN

FEMX -
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29 Significant accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

() In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for certain plant and equipment,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
selling price because quoted market prices for
these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgment relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as turnover and operating costs.

(i) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of aging analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment loss would affect the net profit in
future years.

29 FE=

(i

sF Al at & 3 B os)

ZRETHE k& A8
AEHRREEIRE - A
EERFTEEMA KO
TR - REEERFE
EBEERAEEMENRS
EF AR ARLEREZS
BEMNBEEMSRE - &
HABHMGLAEE B
EREER  BREER
HEANHEERESHHR
EHBE  LBAYHZ?

BKF N EEXANFIRHA
EHERHAE - A&EEHE
BRAFER - AE
ERlEEENEED
2 BREBREBHEXER
LERAFZHEBENAER
A AR B R RE KA
AIE B B A -

REBEBEEBRRESETE
HAd 5 B0 BR R 0 A M AT R
[B142 2 51 il #1751 ik K&t
REE EFEMNEEE
AEPHERFRNBE
WHRRRC 8 E L K E #
B o

b R 1S 18 A {E o] S5 Rk
B @Y ERRFEN G
R o
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30 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued the following amendments, new
standards and Interpretation which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

_|_

|13

HE |
g
-

34 £
T =)
RER :
I RZENEELE

HEAMBHRENEBEH  BEFg
FTEAZESEBMEZEREEC
SENFLoA=+—ALEEY
RER - BARB B HRERIW BN
B3] ~ Ml B M2 -

ok
m| |
.
S

S T A
ﬂ%ﬁf
ﬂ§H|
i o o

I
[y
\/—\
\
N

7

Il

«r

\|

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTI BB zE

BRI ST HREN

Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 July 2009
Bt ERFE27 (BATAR) - &0 RIEFIEHRE —ZEENF+EA—H

Improvements to IFRSs 2009
ZETNFRRI RS 2 B

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations and
financial position.

1 July 2009 or

1 January 2010
—ETNEFLA A%
e —TF—f—H

AEBIEFEZFETRENSGE
RBRAHNEELNTE - EEH
FIALE  AEBERSEA LRERT
PR AR L E KA R
BRABRERZE -
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JL

(Expressed in RMB)
(AANR®5IR)

BT 1% 18 2

2009 2008 2007 2006
—TENF —FTN\F —mTt+fF -—TEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT ARETT
Results -
Turnover S 1,756,001 1,411,248 921,680 392,369
Profit from operations 45 5 A 452,252 341,925 182,453 118,557
Net finance (costs) / income MR (ER),/ WA FE (2,449) 3,117 (436) (664)
Profit before taxation B BT 15 B B % F 449,803 345,042 182,017 117,893
Income tax g (85,659) (63,268) 672) (1,934)
Profit for the year attributable RARE=FEEA
to the equity shareholders FEAE & A
of the Company 364,144 281,774 181,345 115,959
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Plant and equipment W R % 39,330 31,510 22,571 23,949
Lease prepayments MEPEMNRE - — — 4,756
Prepaid advertising fee ENESEEA 6,081 - - —
Net current assets MBEEFE 2,008,883 289,387 151,657 129,943
Total assets less current liabilities 428 E i 2 & & 2,054,294 320,897 174,228 158,648
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 20,062 6,369 — —
Net assets EERE 2,034,232 314,528 174,228 158,648
Capital and reserves EXAR#HE
Share capital/Paid-in capital AR B 256,134 — — 118,813
Reserves e 1,778,098 314,528 174,228 39,835
Total equity BB 2,034,232 314,528 174,228 158,648
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BEF(ARET)
Basic B 0.15 0.13 0.09 0.06
Diluted e 0.15 0.13 0.09 0.06
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MEMBERE(K)

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARMZIR)

Notes:

148 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 December 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap.
22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company became the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group on 31 December 2007 (“Reorganisation”). Further details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated 22 June
2009.

Although the Reorganization as referred to in the Prospectus has not been
completed until 31 December 2007, the Group is regarded as a continuing
group resulting the Reorganization.
statements have been prepared as a business combination under common

from The consolidated financial
control and have been prepared using the principles of merger accounting
as if the household and personal care products business (‘HPC Products
Business”) of the Predecessor Entity as referred to in the Prospectus had
been operated by the companies now comprising the Group and the group
structure immediately after the Reorganization had been in existence since
1 January 2006. Accordingly, the consolidated income statements of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007 include the results
of the companies now comprising the Group and the operations of the HPC
Products Business of the Predecessor Entity. The consolidated income
statements for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 only include
the results of the companies now comprising the Group. The consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 presents the state of affairs of the
companies now comprising the Group and the HPC Products Business of
the Predecessor Entity. The Consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December
2007, 2008 and 2009 only present the state of affairs of the companies now
comprising the Group as at these dates.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years ended 31
December 2008 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the 2,100,000,000 ordinary shares, which comprise 10,000
ordinary shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus and 2,099,990,000
ordinary shares issued on 3 July 2009 by way of capitalisation from the
Company’s share premium account, as if the shares were outstanding
throughout the entire period.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

B

ARARAR_ZFZELF+_A+—BRBEFASH
BRAEE2E (— AN~ FERBRLGE RE
RERSREEIMAIAERRNAERRAT -
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RAKAEEN AR ZZRAR (TEA]) -
AREANHBRRARAR _ZZNFRA
“t-HENBRER -

BERBRERMMNEEAEE_ZT+F =
A=+—B7n&ExKk BEASEEEREEMR
mM—EFEFENEER SHMBHRRBERZ
HEZHNEBEHMERE YERAEHE
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